STUDIES IN PERCEPTION AND ACTION XVI Twenty First International Conference on Perception and Action

EDITED BY: PABLO COVARRUBIAS, ÁNGEL A. JIMÉNEZ **AND WILLIAM H. WARREN**



Studies in Perception and Action XVI

Twenty First International Conference on Perception and Action

June 27-30, 2023

Guadalajara, Mexico

Edited by:

Pablo Covarrubias, Ángel A. Jiménez Center for Research in Comparative Cognition and Behavior University of Guadalajara, Mexico

William H. Warren Department of Cognitive, Linguistic, and Psychological Sciences Brown University, USA

2023 The Authors. This is an open access publication distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License, which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any medium, provided the original author and source are credited.



Attribution-NonCommercial-NoDerivatives 4.0 International (CC BY-NC-ND 4.0)

You are free to:

Share — copy and redistribute the material in any medium or format. The licensor cannot revoke these freedoms as long as you follow the license terms.

Under the following terms:

Attribution — You must give appropriate credit, provide a link to the license, and indicate if changes were made. You may do so in any reasonable manner, but not in any way that suggests the licensor endorses you or your use.

NonCommercial — You may not use the material for commercial purposes.

NoDerivatives — If you remix, transform, or build upon the material, you may not distribute the modified material.

No additional restrictions — You may not apply legal terms or technological measures that legally restrict others from doing anything the license permits.

Table of Contents

Preface
Meeting History
Scientific Committee
Effects of co-verbal gestures on the willingness to interact with people with schizophrenia or depression according to the professions <i>Emilie Aigoin, Stéphane Raffard, Juliette Lozano-Goupil, Ludovic Marin</i> 1
Learning to grasp: Variability of practice and sensory substitution Saroosh Bilal, Raoul M. Bongers, David M. Jacobs2
Embodied Flow in Puzzle Solving: Dynamics of the Tower of Hanoi Dominic Bley, Tehran Davis
Prospective perception of occluded apparent social interactions José María Bravo De Anda, Pablo Covarrubias4
Task history alters the structuring of synergies in a precision finger force task: Implications for understanding resilience <i>Nicole S. Carver, Scott G Fasone, Tamara Lorenz, Tehran J Davis, Paula L Silva</i> 5
Motion sickness and postural activity during head-mounted display virtual driving <i>Po-Wei Chang, Chih-Hui Chang</i> 6
Styles of braking reveal scaling differences in cycling Gisele Chiozi Gotardi, Martina Navarro, Geert Savelsbergh, Sérgio Tosi Rodrigues, John van der Kamp
Exploring the configuration of the caregiver-child-environment system in a feeding situation: a preliminary study in behavioral science <i>María Teresa Contreras, Ara Varsovia Hernández, Alejandro León</i> 8
Moving the Goalposts: The influence of Context on Behavioral Transitions in a Unilateral Manual Reaching Task Dalton Cooper, Tarcisio Santos Moreira, Tehran J. Davis
Acoustic versus Vibrotactile Stimulation in a Sensory Substitution Device Carlos De Paz, David Travieso
Interpersonal coordination during Steady-State Isometric Force Production: Complementary or Compensatory? <i>Amu De Silva, Nicole Carver, Valeria Pinto, Tehran Davis, Paula Silva</i> 11

Study of the rhythmic entrainment between speech and gestures in a conversational task *Tifenn Fauviaux, Ghilès Mostafaoui, Richard Schmidt, Stéphane Raffard, Ludovic Marin.....*13

Sex differences in active tilt in a virtual driving game Eugenia Garza, Danilo Gomes Arruda, George S. Bailey, Tongyu Nie, Thomas A. Stoffregen14

Perception of affordances for receiving serves in virtual volleyball: Effects of serve height in women and men
Danilo Gomes Arruda, Jeffrey B. Wagman, Thomas A. Stoffregen15
Calibration of nested affordances when navigating through apertures on an e-scooter <i>Gisele C. Gotardi, Matt Miller-Dicks, Ludovic Seifert</i> 16
Ecological prospective memory: grounding prospective control within nested affordances <i>Thomas Gray Freeman, Alexandra Paxton</i> 17
Stochastic Resonance Influences Heaviness Perception Allison Ann Grunkemeyer, Aaron Likens
The influences of visual angle in visually-guided eye movements on postural control <i>Shinwei Huang, Po-Wei Chang, Chih-Hui Chang</i> 19
Developing a flow-based notation to describe architectural and urban experiences Makoto Inagami
Lévy-like visual search and hazard detection performance in older drivers Makoto Inagami, Hirofumi Aoki, Kan Shimazaki, Aiko Iwase, Yuto Susuki, Hiroko Terasaki21
Concurrent Schedules of Reinforcement Impact Affordance Boundaries in a Grasping Task Robert W Isenhower, Catalina E. Apodaca, Kenny U. Ruiz
Attractive stepping-stones landscapes: preference for stone-height variation appears to be age independent Amy M Jeschke, Rob Whithagen, Frank T.J.M Zaal, Simone R. Caljouw
Fractal Analysis of Pilot Pupil Size During Virtual Reality Piloting Tasks Corinne J. Jorgenson, Dieter Vanderelst, Nikita Kuznetsov
Diagonal couplets in four-legged human gait to climb stepping-block using two poles Yusuke Koshimizu, Akira Fukuhara, Keiko Yokoyama, Yuji Yamamoto, Akifumi Kijima25
Against Free Energy, for Direct PerceptionRobert Lee Heath, Thomas Stoffregen
An Ecological Approach to Molyneux's Problem Lorena Lobo, Manuel Heras-Escribano, Carlos de Paz, David Travieso
Space differentiation occurs in 6-8 old-month infants: A new view of the Spatial Orientation Paradigm <i>Iván López-Ortiz, Alejandro León, Varsovia Hernández-Eslava</i>
Moving with someone happy makes you happy Juliette Lozano-Goupil, Mathilde Parisi, Stéphane Raffard, Ludovic Marin

Contribution of variability in Joint Coordination During Novel Motor Learning	
Anadi Mehta, Joanne Smith, David Travieso, Raoul M. Bongers	30
Response-force requirements on food-maintained responding in rats	
Denisse Ochoa, Angel Jiménez	31
Role of Emotion on Potential Affordance Detection in Different Environment	
Alara N Ott Kanny I Marsh	27
Анехи N. Oli, Кетту L. Mursh	· • • • • • J Z

The Effect of Ambient Lighting Conditions on Affordance PerceptionTyler R. Overstreet, Alen Hajnal
Cross Recurrence Quantification analysis of a ball retrieval task in Virtual Reality Balagopal Raveendranath, Roshan Venkatakrishnan, Rohith Venkatakrishnan, Christopher Pagano, Sabarish Babu
Effects of active-passive exploration and surface layout stability on haptic perception Aurelio M. Rodríguez, Pablo Covarrubias
How affordances affect choice in an environment with variable food distribution? Dil Romero, Xavier Aragón, Indira Bautista, Ángel Jiménez
Does upper-limb exoskeleton affect pointing accuracy? Elenah B. Rosopa, Balagopal Raveendranath, Christopher C. Pagano, Divya Srinivasan
Active patterns in relationship perception: A modified transposition task with multidimensional stimuli Joao Santibáñez, Alejandro León, Varsovia Hernández, Isiris Guzmán, Esteban Escamilla
The implications of potential-effective stimuli in James Gibson's ecological psychology: one hypothesis and issues <i>Hiroki Seki</i>
A classification algorithm for quantifying behavioral performance in a free operant response- restraint task <i>Rodrigo Sosa, Pablo Saavedra, Pedro Espinosa-Villafranca, Mario Buenrostro-Jáuregui</i> 40
Chosen stepping-stone configurations depend on task constraints Maisha Tahsin Orthy, Tyler Duffrin, Amy M. Jeschke, Jeffrey B. Wagman, Rob Withagen41
Towards a Theory of Ecological Resilience Susan I. Tilbury.
The nonlinearity of pupil diameter fluctuations in an insight task as criteria for detecting children who solve the problem from those who do not <i>Sebastián Vásquez-Pinto, Diego Morales-Bader, Ralf F. A. Cox, Felipe Munoz-Rubke, Ramón D. Castillo</i>
Longitudinal observation of the arrangement of a nursery room <i>Hiroe Yamazaki, Hikaru Nozawa, Chihiro Nishio</i> 44

Preface

The International Conference on Perception and Action (ICPA) is the official conference of the International Society for Ecological Psychology (ISEP). As such, it provides a forum for scientific discussion for those scholars interested in the ecological approach to perception and action, as well as other topics in ecological psychology, inspired by the work of James and Eleanor Gibson. After a 4-year hiatus due to the COVID-19 pandemic, this year the conference is held in Guadalajara, Mexico.

In accordance with previous ICPA, Studies in Perception and Action, Volume XVI, is the Poster Book that represents the posters presented at the meeting. This year we are making copies of the actual posters available in electronic format as a PDF file. All presenters were asked to submit the final electronic versions of their posters before the meeting, a somewhat challenging endeavor. This effort has enabled us to publish the full posters prior to the conference, with the aim of encouraging scientific discussion among attendees. We also hope that the electronic version will make the posters widely available. The Poster Book will be permanently archived on the ISEP website (http://commons.trincoll.edu/isep/).

Readers of this book will find research on a wide variety of topics including perception in any modality, motor control and coordination, perceptual control of action, affordances, social interaction, development, learning, cognition, language, human factors, design, sensory substitution, complex systems, and the dynamics of all of the above. This work represents an excellent cross-section of the fascinating and diverse research inspired by the ecological approach today.

We want to thank Aurelio M. Rodriguez for the technical assistance in the editing process and to Fidel Romero for making the cover and layout of the poster book. Our appreciation and gratitude to members of the Scientific Committee for their timely revisions and comments.

Pablo Covarrubias Ángel A. Jiménez University of Guadalajara, Mexico

William H. Warren Brown University, USA

June 2023

vi

Scientific Committee

- Julia J. C. Blau Central Connecticut State University, USA
- Raoul M. Bongers University of Groningen, The Netherlands
- Ramón D. Castillo University of Talca, Chile
- Pablo Covarrubias University of Guadalajara, Mexico
- Alen Hajnal University of Southern Mississippi, USA
- Ángel A. Jiménez University of Guadalajara, Mexico
- Nam-Gyoon Kim Keimyung University, Korea
- Alejandro León Universidad Veracruzana, Mexico
- Lorena Lobo Universidad a Distancia de Madrid, Spain
- Tetsushi Nonaka Kobe University, Japan
- Michael J. Richardson Macquarie University, Australia
- David Travieso Universidad Autónoma de Madrid, Spain
- Audrey L. H. van der Meer Norwegian University of Science and Technology, Norway
- Jeffrey B. Wagman Illinois State University, USA

vii

Meeting History

- 1981 Storrs, CT, USA
- 1983 Nashville, TN, USA
- 1985 Uppsala, Sweden
- 1987 Trieste, Italy
- 1989 Miami, OH, USA
- 1991 Amsterdam, the Netherlands
- 1993 Vancouver, Canada
- 1995 Marseille, France
- 1997 Toronto, Canada
- 1999 Edinburgh, Scotland
- 2001 Storrs, CT, USA
- 2003 Gold Coast, Australia
- 2005 Monterey, CA, USA
- 2007 Yokohama City, Japan
- 2009 Minneapolis, MN, USA
- 2011 Ouro Preto, Brazil
- 2013 Estoril, Portugal
- 2015 Minneapolis, MN, USA
- 2017 Seoul, Republic of Korea
- 2019 Groningen, the Netherlands
- 2023 Guadalajara, Mexico

viii



Emilie Aigoin¹, Stéphane Raffard^{2,3}, Juliette Lozano-Goupil¹, Ludovic Marin¹

¹ : Euromov Digital Health in Motion, University of Montpellier, IMT Mines d'Alès

² : Epsylon Laboratory Dynamic of Human Abilities & Health Behaviors, University of Paul Valery

³: University Department of Adult Psychiatry, Hôpital de la Colombière, CHU Montpellier



Effects of co-verbal gestures on the willingness to interact with people with schizophrenia or depression according to the professions

51

CONTEXT

Goal: to compare the willingness of several professional groups to interact with SZ or DP patients. To investigate the behavioural determinants of willingness to interact

Problematic: Is there a difference in the willingness of general population or mental health professionals to interact with SZ or DP compared to people without psychiatric disorder? Was this related to the number of hand gestures made by these subjects?

Co-verbal gestures: hand gestures, assist speech and give information to listeners. Important for assessing a partner's social skills

Schizophrenia (SZ) and depression (DP): mental disorders. Causes alterations in production of co-verbal gestures (Pavlidou et al., 2021)

Willingness to interact: behaviours of approaching or avoiding social interaction, based on rapid information intake of character traits of the potential social partner

Stigma: reaction of a group or society to minority, different or disadvantaged, individuals or groups by labelling them as not being part of the 'norm'

Stigma by mental health professionals: one of the main sources of stigma. Increases social distance and leads to negative access to treatment (Schulze, 2007)

EXPERIMENTATION

Creation of stimuli:

- Records of 2 SZ subjects, 2 DP subjects, 2 control subjects (CT)
- Behavioural modalities: video (Figure 1), audio, video-audio, photo

Creation of the questionnaire :

- Visualization of a first stimulus Willingness to interact questionnaire (Sasson et al., 2017)
- Visualization of a second stimulus
- Willingness to interact questionnaire

...

Questionnaire respondents:

- Mental health professionals (MHP) : N = 30
- Health and social professionals (HSP) : N = 30
- Figure 1. Example of point-light display stimulus
- Control professionals (CTP) : N = 30

= 🗖



4

5

Hypothesis 1: Respondents are less inclined to interact with SZ than with DP or CT subjects.

3

→ YES: Regardless of the respondents' profession, all participants are less inclined to interact with SZ than with DP or CT, and that in all behavioural modalities.

Hypothesis 2: MHP are more proned to interact with SZ and DP subjects than CTP or HSP.

→ NO: We did not find any significant difference between MHP, HSP and CTP in terms of willingness to interact.

Graph 1. Boxplot of mean scores given by respondents according to pathology's and respondents' groups for willingness to interact

RESULTS



Regarding hypothesis 1: This negative perceptions of SZ and DP traits is observed in all modalities :

- Video : people with SZ have less used their repertory of coverbal gestures (Pavlidou et al., 2021)
- Audio : people with SZ or DP may have reduced physical functioning which may affect speech production (ibid.)
- Photo : people with SZ exhibited a range of unusual idiosyncratic appearance (e.g. dressing oddly, wearing multiple layers of clothing) (Arnold et al., 1993)

Regarding hypothesis 2: It seems that the time spent to take care of the patients does not reduce stigma (Arbanas et al., 2019) but mostly the knowledge about mental disorders.

Regarding hypothesis 3: It is not a single modality that explains a low interaction willingness. It may be due to the speed of gestures or their synchronization with speech more that number of gestures.



Hypothesis 3: There is a correlation between number of gestures and willingness to interact, regardless of their diagnosis.

 \rightarrow NO: We found no significant correlation between the scores obtained by SZ, DP or CT and the number of gestures performed during the stimuli.

All respondents were less willing to interact with people with SZ than with those with DP or with controls.

CONCLUSION

- Mental health professionals, like other professionals, all seem inclined to interact weakly with people with mental illnesses.
 - The (lack of) willingness to interact with people with mental disorder can be attributed to all communicational modalities (gesture, speech and appearance) and not specifically to the number of gestures.

References :

Arbanas, G., Rožman, J., & Bagarić, Š. (2019). THE ATTITUDES OF MEDICAL DOCTORS, NURSES AND LAY PEOPLE TOWARDS SCHIZOPHRENIA, DEPRESSION AND PTSD. Psychiatria Danubina, 31, 84-91.

Arnold, V. K., Rosenthal, T. L., Dupont, R. T., & Hilliard, D. (1993). Redundant clothing: A readily observable marker for schizophrenia in the psychiatric emergency room population. Journal of Behavior Therapy and Experimental Psychiatry, 24(1), 45-47. https://doi.org/10.1016/0005-7916(93)90007-j

Pavlidou, A., Viher, P. V., Bachofner, H., Weiss, F., Stegmayer, K., Shankman, S. A., Mittal, V. A., & Walther, S. (2021). Hand gesture performance is impaired in major depressive disorder : A matter of working memory performance? *Journal of Affective Disorders, 292*, 81-88. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jad.2021.05.055

Sasson, N. J., Faso, D. J., Nugent, J., Lovell, S., Kennedy, D. P., & Grossman, R. B. (2017). Neurotypical Peers are Less Willing to Interact with Those with Autism based on Thin Slice Judgments. Scientific Reports, 7(1), 40700. https://doi.org/10.1038/srep40700

Schulze, B. (2007). Stigma and mental health professionals: A review of the evidence on an intricate relationship. International Review of Psychiatry (Abingdon, England), 19(2), 137-155. https://doi.org/10.1080/09540260701278929





were different, depending on the size and position of the initial and target objects (Fig 4).

position for the initial and final



correct grasp, in a posttest of constant as well as in the variable task.

Embodied Flow in Puzzle Solving: Dynamics of the Tower of Hanoi



Dominic Bley BA, Tehran J. Davis PhD

University of Cincinnati, Department of Psychology, Center for Cognition, Action, and Perception

Background

Psychological states of flow have commonly been discussed as an optimal state of inner experience or, more precisely, as a multi-dimensional, positive experiential state that results from engagement in a task that is both difficult and worthwhile (Csikszentmihalyi, 1990). Flow has typically been measured using self-report methods that ask people to assess their subjective experience across several dimensions ranging from feelings of being able to complete the task competently to absorption in the task (Jackson & Marsh, 1996). However, these self-report methods have been criticized for being a "skull bound" form of assessment for a phenomenon that is necessarily embodied (Montul et al. 2020). In addition, self-report measures alone typically are unable to provide information about the relationship between flow and performance in **real time**.

In the present study, we hoped to further the development of methods that might quantify the flow experience behaviorally (Montul et al., 2020) by combining the survey methodology with behavioral timeseries. Previous work has used multifractal measures to index aspects of human performance that correspond to dimensions of the flow experience, including executive functioning and perceptualmotor control (Dotov et al., 2017, Anastas, 2013), where the . multifractal spectrum width (MFSW) is understood as a measure of multi-scale complexity within a system. It stands to reason that if multifractal measures have been used to index these phenomena, then similar metrics may yield insight into the behavioral elements of the flow experience. As an entry point, we investigated whether measures of multifractality reliably correlated with established dimensions of the flow experience.

Method



Figure 1: (Left) the tower of Hanoi; (Right) the HTC Vive tracker placed on hand.

A total of 25 people participated in this study. Participants completed a hand-built Tower of Hanoi Puzzle (dimensions 10 in x 30 in x 7 in). All participants performed a set of discrete trials attempting to solve the tower in the minimum number of moves while wearing HTC Vive motion trackers on their hands and sternum. Participants started a first block of trials, beginning with a tower of 2 rings; and after each successful completion another ring was added up to 4 rings. After completion of a 4-ring puzzle, a Flow State Scale (FSS, Jackson & Marsh, 1996) was administered. Between blocks, participants completed a 5-ring puzzle after which, participants completed another block of the 2-ring to 4-ring progression. At the end of the second block another FSS survey was administered. Time-series data from participants hand movements was collected for the entire experiment. While the FSS contains assessments of 9 different subscales, here we focus on responses related to Challenge-Skill Balance (CSB; ability to meet the challenge of the task at hand) and Action-Awareness Merging (AAM, absorption of the awareness of one's actions within the context of the task).

Results

Timeseries of each participant's dominant hand movements were differentiated to created a displacement time-series. These displacement timeseries were then submitted to multifractal analysis (Chhabara & Jensen, 1989) and the MFSW was calculated for each block. Linear mixed-effects models were used to predict each participant's subjective flow report as a function of multifractal spectrum width, block, and their interaction.







Figure 3: Relationship between AMA and MFSW by Block

CSB scores: The model revealed a significant positive relationship between MFSW and CSB scores, b = 1.43, SE = .62, t(17.43) = 2.291, p =.031. However, this effect was qualified by a Block * MFSW interaction, b = -1.83, SE = .80, t(20.82) = -2.30, p = .032. Simple slopes analyses revealed a significant positive relationship between MFSW and CSB in Block 1, b = 1.43, SE = 0.65, t(16.6) = 2.20, p = .042. The relationship between MSFW and scores in Block 2 was not significantly different from zero.

AAM scores: The model revealed a significant positive relationship between Block and AAM scores, b = 3.27, SE = .1.13, t(19.53) = 2.90, p = .009. This effect was quantified by a Block * MFSW interaction, b = -2.92, SE = 1.19, t(20.02) = -2.45, p = .024. Simple slopes analyses revealed a significant negative relationship between MFSW and AAM in Block 3, b = -1.54, SE = 0.56, t(20) = -2.73, p = .013. The positive coefficient in Block 1 though similar in absolute magnitude, was nonsignificant (attributed to increased standard error of the estimate).

Discussion

The aim of the present study was to capture the behavioral dynamics of the tower of Hanoi while assessing covariation with FSS survey scores to determine whether measures of multifractality of movement might be associated with the subjective experience of flow. Here, our results revealed that the magnitude and direction of relationships between MFSW and FSS scores varied across several of the subscales including our focus on CSB and AAM. As it relates to MFSW as an index of complexity, the relationship between high reports of flow and the directionality of spectrum width appeared to change over time with more complex movements corresponding to increased experiences of flow during Block 1. During Block 2 trials, the opposite occurred-greater complexity corresponded to decreased feelings of flow. Provided the recursive dynamics of the tower itself, this change in direction might be explained by the learning process as it relates to movement. A given towers full completion necessitates solving all the towers with lower ring-counts throughout the process. We conjecture that MSFW may be capturing the degree of exploratory activity as participants learn to complete the task, where wider MFSW captures more exploratory activity. Under this interpretation, greater exploration to meet the demands of the Tower of Hanoi task may engender higher experiences of flow. Our results point to the embodied nature of flow and that MFSW is a potential predictor of a flow state. If the flow experience could be reliably captured by embodied measures, this suggests that flow might be more properly defined as an embodied activity than a purely

subjective experience.

References

Csikszentmihalyi, M. (1990). Flow: The Psychology of Optimal Experience. Harper & Row.

Jackson, S.A., & Marsh, H.W. (1996). Development and validation of a scale to measure optimal experience: The Flow State Scale. Journal of Sport and Exercise Psychology, 18 (1), 17-35.

Montull, L., Vázquez, P., Rocas, L., Hristovski, R., & Balagué, N. (2020). Flow as an embodied state. informed awareness of slackline walking. Frontiers in Psychology, 10. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2019.02993

Dotov, D., Nie, L., Wojcik, K., Jinks, A., Yu, X., & Chemero, A. (2017). Cognitive and movement measures reflect the transition to presence-at-hand. New Ideas in Psychology, 45, 1–10. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.newideapsych.2017.01.001 Anastas, Jason, "Individual Differences on Multi-scale Measures of Executive Function" (2013).Doctoral Dissertations. 177.http://digitalcommons.uconn.edu/dissertations/177

Prospective Perception of Occluded Apparent Social Interactions

José María Bravo de Anda and Pablo Covarrubias Center for Research in Comparative Cognition and Behavior University of Guadalajara, Mexico



Introduction

In our study we implemented an adaptation of Heider and Simmel's (1944) 'Apparent Behavior Paradigm'. The major number of elements of its original version was maintained: a big triangle, two small figures (a triangle and a circle), and a rectangle of a size bigger than the other three figures. A novel feature was that the rectangle served as an occluding object. According to Heft (2017), perception of social structures, can be understood in a similar way to the *occluding edge* phenomenon: providing a background that gives meaning to individual actions retrospectively and affords possibilities prospectively. We tested the idea that social interactions can be prospectively perceived.

In our study, participants after seeing apparent social interactions between the big triangle and the two small figures, they had to respond verbally about what they had seen. Then, after the small figures enter to the rectangle (occlusion) participants had to say what they think small figures were doing inside the rectangle.

Objective To assess whether apparent social interactions of geometric figures can be prospectively perceived.

Method

Participants

Forty-two college students from 18 to 30 years old (32 women and 10 men; M= 22.6 years, SD= 6.3) participated.

Materials

This study was carried out online. A basic Gloogle Meet platform was used. Videos implemented in the study were edited with the Adobe Premier Pro CS6 version. Data were recorded with a SONY voice recorder.

Procedure

Participants were exposed to two of three types of apparent social interactions (see Figure 1 and Experimental Design). At the last part of each interaction, small figures enter to the rectangle so they went out of participants' sight. After that, the screen went dark, and participants were asked "*what did you see*?" and "*what do you think figures are doing inside the rectangle*?". This procedure was conducted 12 times, that is, four times per interaction.





Figure 2. Proportions of verbal responses under three types of apparent social interactions.

Conclusions

*The interaction 'Triangle separates small figures' generated the highest proportions of verbal responses of "*Triangle separates small figures*" in training sessions, which suggests that this was the most differentiated social interaction among the three interactions, followed by 'Triangle joins small figures' and 'Triangle separates and joins small figures'.

*Similarly, the interaction 'Triangle separates small figures' generated the highest proportions of verbal responses of "*Small figures joined*" in test sessions (occlusion) which suggests that apparent social interactions perceived in training were related to occluded apparent social interactions perceived in test.

*The correspondence between verbal responses in training and test suggests that apparent social interactions of geometric figures might have been prospectively perceived.

References

Heft, H. (2017). Perceptual information of "an entirely different order": The "cultural environment" in The Senses Considered as Perceptual Systems. *Ecological Psychology, 29*, 122-145.

Heider, F., & Simmel, M. (1944). An experimental study of apparent behavior. *The American Journal of Psychology*, *57*, 243-259.

Task history alters the structuring of synergies in a precision finger force task: Implications for understanding resilience



Nicole S. Carver¹, Scott G. Fasone¹, Tamara Lorenz¹, Tehran J. Davis¹ & Paula L. Silva¹ ¹University of Cincinnati, Center for Cognition, Action, and Perception

Introduction

- · Resilience, or preservation of performance in the face of challenges or stressors, is supported by one's ability to achieve a motor task through multiple motor solutions
- · Uncontrolled Manifold Analysis (UCM) is one method for differentiating variance in motor elements that preserves (compensatory variance; $\mathsf{V}_{\mathsf{UCM}}$) versus hinders (orthogonal variance, V_{ORT}) performance.
- · However, better motor performance has been associated with increases, decreases, or even no change in the extent of V_{UCM} (Wu & Latash, 2014).
- · In two studies isometric force production studies, we examined how the not only the extent of V_{UCM} matters, but also how individuals move through this space over time (SampEn_{UCM}) for predicting resiliency in challenging task conditions.
- Grover et al. (2022) had participants complete low and high force conditions. In both conditions, more regularity in V_{UCM} (lower SampEn_{UCM}) predicted better performance. For the high force condition in particular, the benefit of greater regularity was boosted when individuals showed more compensatory behavior (greater V_{UCM}).
- In Pinto et al. (in-prep), participants matched a single force level but with the addition of a gain in some conditions that required greater force production precision. A similar pattern of results to Grover et al. (2022) was found.
- · Features of synergy are mutable. It is unknown how history with a task might alter our previous findings or synergy characteristics themselves.



Objectives

- · To examine the effect of history with task demands on performance resilience and to determine how this effect is modified by the amount compensation in motor elements (V_{UCM}) and regularity of compensatory patterns (SampEn_{UCM}).
- To examine whether history with task demands alters the amount (V $_{\rm UCM}$) and the regularity (SampEn_{UCM}) of compensation.

Method

Participants

- Thirty-two adults (19 female, 11 male, 2 non-binary) aged from 18 to 39 years.
- Normal or corrected-to-normal vision and free of any neurological, motor, or balance disorders or recent injuries.

Procedure

- Participants sat at a desk and placed each index finger on a small force sensor.
- During a 30s trial, participants pressed both sensors in order to make a blue bar appear on the monitor in front of them and match the target force bar (green).
- Some trials had a gain added to them, altering the precision demand of the task. Higher gain values resulted in greater sensitivity of the blue bar to changes in force, amplifying the error participants saw.



Group (Task History)	Gain Ordering
High to low precision demand (H-L)	8,8,7,7,6,6,5,5,4,4,3,3,2,2,1,1, 0,0
Low to high precision demand (L-H)	0,0,1,1,2,2,3,3,4,4,5,5,6,6,7,7, 8,8

Participants were randomly assigned to one of two groups representing different task histories (see Table).



V_{UCM Ic}

Model 2: V_{UCM}

RMS,

- Significant effects:
- Gain (b = 0.07)
 - Gain × Group (b = -0.12)
- V_{UCM} decreases at higher gains for the H-L group. V_{UCM} increases with gain for the L-H group.

Model 3: SampEnucm

- Significant effects:
 - Trial (*b* = 0.003)
- SampEn_{UCM} decreases (i.e., greater regularity) with subsequent trials, regardless of gain or group assignment.

Discussion & Conclusion

History of task demand did alter performance resilience. Specifically, the H-L group displayed less error at higher gains than the L-H group. One path to understanding this finding is the Challenge Point Framework (Guadagnoli & Lee, 2004) and the unique role of amplifying feedback in performance.

Analyses

- As a performance metric, we calculated root mean square error (RMS_{FRROR}) between each participant's target force and total force values.
- After conducting UCM analysis on each trial, we took the V_{UCM} values and ran sample entropy on them for each trial.
- Model 1: Mixed effect modeling of RMS_{ERROR}
 - Predictors: Trial (main effect only), Group, Gain, $V_{UCM_{log}}$, SampEn_{UCM}
- Model 2: Mixed effect modeling of V_{UCM}
 - Predictors: Group, Gain, Trial
- Model 3: Mixed effect modeling of SampEn_{UCM}
 - Predictors: Group, Gain, Trial

- Performance resilience was affected not only by the amount of compensatory variance, but also how individuals expressed this variance over time. The benefits of more regularity in this variance was dependent on both the task and task history.
- Task history affected V_{UCM} , while changes in SampEn_{UCM} are time related.
- Changes in attention may explain time-related changes in SampEn_{UCM} and why the H-L group was potentially more sensitive to the additional information provided by the high gain conditions.

Future Directions:

- Explore Latash's (2010) two-stage learning theory with the addition of SampEn_{UCM}.
- · Find more ecologically valid tasks in which this methodology is appropriate.

References: [1] Wu, Y. H., & Latash, M. L. (2014). The effects of practice on coordination. Exercise and sport sciences reviews, 42(1), 37-42. [2] Grover, F. M., Andrade, V., Carver, N. S., Bonnette, S., Riley, M. A., & Silva, P. L. (2022). A Dynamical Approach to the Uncontrolled Manifold: Predicting Performance Error During Steady-State Isometric Force Production. Motor control, 26(4), 536–557. [3] Guadagnoli, M. A., & Lee, T. D. (2004). Challenge Point: A Framework for Conceptualizing the Effects of Various Practice Conditions in Motor Learning. Journal of Motor Behavior, 36, 212-224. [4] Latash M. L. (2010). Stages in learning motor synergies: a view based on the equilibrium-point hypothesis. Human movement science, 29, 642-654.



Motion sickness and postural activity during head-mounted display virtual driving



Po-Wei Chang, Chih-Hui Chang

Department of Physical Education, National Kaohsiung Normal University, Taiwan

Introduction

Motion sickness is a type of physical symptom that causes dizziness, headache and even nausea, vomiting and other discomfort (Kennedy et al., 1993). Besides the possibility of motion sickness on transportation, the virtual reality (VR) has also created the problem of motion sickness. The head-mounted display (HMD) is a device commonly used in virtual reality (VR). Curry et al., (2020) found that when individuals were seated and exposed to HMD driving games, 43 % of them reported motion sickness, but there was no sex difference in the incidence rate. The present study further investigated the effects of heel shoes and sex on postural control and motion sickness while standing individuals controlled a driving games in an HMD virtual environment.

Method

Participants

There were 119 participants recruited, and randomly assigned to the following four groups according to sex and heel shoes: male barefoot (MB) group; male heel shoes (MH) group; female, barefoot (FB) group; female heel shoes (FH) group. The basic information of groups is as shown in Table 1. The experimental protocol was approved by the Research Ethics Committee for Human Behavioral Sciences of National Cheng Kung University.

Table 1 Basic information of participants and incidence rate of motion sickness									
Number	Age (years)	High (cm)	Weight (kg)	Incidence rate (%)					
30	21.67 ± 1.63	172.91 ± 6.04	68.19 ± 12.79	26.67					
30	21.08 ± 1.31	175.02 ±7.80	70.74 ± 11.79	26.67					
30	21.08 ± 0.95	160.50 ± 5.78	58.46 ± 8.89	56.67					
29	20.70 ± 0.93	162.87 ±4.68	60.41 ± 10.76	55.17					
	able 1 Basic Number 30 30 30 29	Age (years)NumberAge (years) 30 21.67 ± 1.63 30 21.08 ± 1.31 30 21.08 ± 0.95 29 20.70 ± 0.93	NumberAge (years)High (cm) 30 21.67 ± 1.63 172.91 ± 6.04 30 21.08 ± 1.31 175.02 ± 7.80 30 21.08 ± 0.95 160.50 ± 5.78 29 20.70 ± 0.93 162.87 ± 4.68	able 1 Basic information of participants and incidence rate of moNumberAge (years)High (cm)Weight (kg) 30 21.67 ± 1.63 172.91 ± 6.04 68.19 ± 12.79 30 21.08 ± 1.31 175.02 ± 7.80 70.74 ± 11.79 30 21.08 ± 0.95 160.50 ± 5.78 58.46 ± 8.89 29 20.70 ± 0.93 162.87 ± 4.68 60.41 ± 10.76					

Male barefoot (MB) group; Male heel shoes (MH) group; Female, barefoot (FB) group; Female heel shoes (FH) group

Procedure

Participants were require to fill out the SSQ (Kennedy et al., 1993) to measure the severity of motion sickness before the expose to the HMD. Two sensors of a Magnetic tracking system (Flock of Birds, FOB) (Ascension Technologies, Inc., Burlington, VT) were attached to the head and torso (the 7th vertebra) of the participants at 60 Hz to measure their body movement during exposure. Participants performed visual search task and visual inspection tasks for 1 minute each. And then they were required to play a driving game in HMD for up to 15 minutes. Oral response to a yes/no question was used to determine if participants were motion sick. Then, they were required to complete SSQ2 to measure the severity of motion sickness symptoms after the expose to the virtual reality.

Results and Discussion

Incidence rate of motion sickness

The overall incidence of motion sickness was 41.18 % (49/119). The results showed significant Sex effect, $x^2(1) = 10.52$, p = .001, The incidence of motion sickness is higher among female (33/59 = 55.93 %) than male (16/60 = 26.67 %). The Heel Shoes effect was not significant, $x^2(1) = 0.01$, p = .913. Data on motion sickness are summarized in Table 1. The overall incidence rate were comparable to the study of Curry et al. (2020). However, the present finding of sex difference is distinct compared to Curry et al. (2020). The differences could be attributed to different postures: standing in the present study compared to being seated in Curry et al. (2020). Due to word limitations, the results of SSQ will be presented in the full manuscript. **Positional variability**

A Sickness Groups × Sex × Shoe Height × Time Windows mixed effects 4 way analysis of variance, with the last factor as repeated measure was used to analyze the during exposure head and torso movement in anterior-posterior (AP) and mediolateral (ML) axes. The Time Windows effect was significant in both the head and torso

For head movement in the AP axis, the Sex × Time Windows interaction was significant, F(2, 184) = 6.62, p = .002, partial $\eta^2 = .07$. For head movement in the ML axis, Sickness Groups × Shoe Height × Time Windows interaction was significant, F(1.67, 153.14) = 3.54, p = .039, partial $\eta^2 = .04$ (Fig 1).

For torso movement in the AP axis, Sex × Time Windows interaction was significant. F (2, 188) = 5.54, p = .005, partial η^2 = .06. For torso movement in the ML axis, Sickness Groups × Shoe Height × Time Windows interaction was significant, F (1.38, 129.23) = 7.30, p = .004, partial η^2 = .07 (Fig 2). Sickness Groups × Shoe Height interaction was significant, F (1, 94) = 4.40, p = .039, partial η^2 = .05.

Results showed significant Sex × Time windows effect of the AP axis of the head and torso movement. Postural control of male is different from female (Chiari, et al., 2002; Era, et al., 2006) while individuals exposed to a HMD driving game. The Motion sickness × Shoes height × Time windows effect was significant in the ML axis of the head and torso movement. Although, shoes height did not affect the incidence and symptom severity of motion sickness, the present study is the first one to verify that it affects postural control and motion sickness with increases of time.



Fig. 1 Interaction effects of Sickness Groups \times shoes height \times Time Windows on the variability of body movement in the ML axis of the head exposed to VR. A. Barefoot group. B. Heel shoes group. The error bars represent the standard error of the mean.



Fig. 2 Interaction effects of Sickness Groups \times shoes height \times Time Windows on the variability of body movement in the ML axis of the torso exposed to VR. A. Barefoot group. B. Heel shoes group. The error bars represent the standard error of the mean.

Conclusion

The present study investigated the effects of sex and heel shoes on postural control and motion sickness while individuals driving a virtual car in a head-mounted display (HMD) environment. We found that female had a higher incidence of motion sickness than male when driving virtual vehicles. During exposure to the HMD, the sex difference of postural sway changed as a function of time and it also changed as a function of heel shoes, motion sickness, and time. The results of during exposure postural activity supported the theory of postural instability of motion sickness (Riccio & Stoffregen, 1991).

References

Chiari, L., Rocchi, L., & Cappello, A. (2002). Stabilometric parameters are affected by anthropometry and foot placement. *Clinical Biomechanics*, *17*(9), 666-677. doi:10.1016/S0268-0033(02)00107-9 Curry, C., Li, R., Peterson, N., & Stoffregen, T. A. (2020). Cybersickness in virtual reality head-mounted displays: Examining the influence of sex differences and vehicle control. *International Journal of Human-Computer Interaction*, *36*, 1161-1167. doi:10.1080/10447318.2020.1726108

movements, ps < .05, the results of the post-hoc analysis and the mean for each time window is as Table 2.

Table 2 Significant main effects of Time Windows on positional variability								
	W1	W2	W3	Post-hoc test				
Head AP	1.66 ± 0.47	1.85 ± 0.75	2.02 ± 0.84	W3>W2=W1				
Head ML	1.66 ± 0.87	1.99 ± 1.05	2.25 ± 1.56	W3>W2>W1				
Torso AP	1.22 ± 0.35	1.33 ± 0.56	1.39 ± 0.59	W3>W2=W1				
Torso ML	1.07 ± 0.51	1.22 ± 0.74	1.47 ± 1.51	W3>W2>W1				
positional variability (cm); $W1=W$ indow 1, $W2=W$ indow 2, $W3$ Window 3; \pm denotes standard								
deviation								

Era, P., Sainio, P., Koskinen, S., Haavisto, P., Vaara, M., & Aromaa, A. (2006). Postural balance in a random sample of 7,979 subjects aged 30 years and over. *Gerontology*, *52*(4), 204-213. doi:10.1159/000093652

Kennedy, R. S., Lane, N. E., Berbaum, K. S., & Lilienthal, M. G. (1993). Simulator sickness questionnaire: An enhanced method for quantifying simulator sickness. *International Journal of Aviation Psychology*, *3*, 203-220.

Riccio, G. E., & Stoffregen, T. A. (1991). An ecological theory of motion sickness and postural instability. *Ecological Psychology*, *3*, 195-240. doi:10.1207/s15326969eco0303_2

Acknowledgements

The present study was supported by the Ministry of Science and Technology, Taiwan (MOST 110-2410-H-017-019)



Styles of braking reveal scaling differences in cycling

Gisele C. Gotardi^{1,2}, Martina Navarro³, Geert J. P. Savelsbergh², Sérgio T. Rodrigues¹, John van der Kamp²

¹ Graduate program in Human Movement Science, São Paulo State University, Bauru, Brazil

² Dept. Human Movement Sciences, Faculty of Behavioural and Movement Sciences, Vrije Universiteit Amsterdam, Netherlands ³ School of Sport, Health and Exercise Science, University of Portsmouth, United Kingdom

gcgotardi@gmail.com

Introduction

Affordance-based control (Fajen, 2007)



Action boundary constraint

keep required deceleration to stop below the maximum achievable deceleration (Fajen, 2005a; 2005b; 2005c; 2007).

different styles of control

1a)

Aim: We investigated whether active- and inactive-cyclists show different styles of braking in a naturalistic cycling task.

Results



Figure 2. Styles of braking control: a) aggressive style, Dideal curve shows a skewed parabolic shape, with a late braking onset and a high and steep peak; b) conservative style, Dideal curve grows linearly flat and low peak.

 Table 1. Contingency table that displays the frequency distribution of the braking styles per group across load and speed conditions.

		active-cyclists		inact		
		aggressive	conservative	aggressive	conservative	TOTAL
na laad	low-speed	14	5	10	8	37
no-load	high-speed	18	1	7	11	37
Electronic	low-speed	14	5	12	6	37
Skg-Ioad	high-speed	17	2	10	8	37
10kg lood	low-speed	14	5	11	7	37
TOKE-10ad	high-speed	18	1	10	8	37
	TOTAL	95	19	60	48	222

 $\chi^{2}(1) = 22.42, p < .001$



Figure 3. a) magnitude of brake adjustments as a function ideal deceleration (m/s^2) and **b)** relative ideal deceleration (% ObsDmax) by the braking styles. All frames used in this analysis showed a deceleration error close to zero (or 'nulled').

Conclusions

 Mapping from brake adjustment to deceleration was proportional among aggressive brakers but not for conservative brakers.

Methodology

Participants

19 active-cyclists (> 20 km/week)

18 inactive-cyclists (no weekly practice)

Conditions

- Load (no-load, 5kg-load, 10kg-load)
- Speed (low-speed, high-speed)

Experimental task

• Stop as close as possible to the obstacle and to avoid the collision

1b)



Figure 1. a) The experimental bicycle with the cargo bag attached to the frame; b) The approaching and stopping zones of the cycle path until the obstacle (white foam cuboid). Initial distances placed at 21.6m and 37m to the obstacle were used for low-speed and high-speed conditions, respectively.

Data analysis

- Dcurrent: current or momentary deceleration $(v_f v_i/t)$
- Dideal: ideal deceleration required to stop $(v^2/2z)$
- ObsDmax: observed maximum peak of Dcurrent in each bicycle load condition
- Brake adjustment: when brake lever was pressed by at least 10% of maximum brake displacement (Fajen, 2008)
- Braking onset: time (s) at first brake adjustment
- Aggressive style (fig. 2a): characterised by a late braking onset and a high, steep peak in Dideal
- Conservative style (fig. 2b): characterised by an early braking onset and gradual, linear increase in Dideal
- These observations support the hypothesis that braking styles emerge from differences in scaling between perception and action.

Funding

This work was funded by the Brazilian Federal Agency CAPES Foundation (grant number 88881.362087/2019-01)





When verbal assistance was restricted to the caregiver, the following compensatory behaviors of the system were observed: an increase in the child's vocalizations, a more limited presentation of utensils for manual exploration, and in most cases, these utensils were followed by utensils towards non-food surfaces. Correspondingly, the caregiver showed a higher

frequency and consistency in feeding cycles throughout the session.

When the caregiver's use of utensils was restricted, compensatory behaviors were observed to achieve the feeding objective. The caregiver diversified assistance in the second half of the session, resulting in more consistent intakes by the child.

The results obtained show that: a) studying caregiver-child-environment interactions in a laboratory setting allows for a clearer identification of compensatory behaviors in the system when restricting the most relevant behaviors identified in longitudinal studies, and b) the observed compensatory behaviors account for the system's adjustment to meet the objective of the situation: feeding.

References

Belza, H., Herrán, E., & Anguera, M. T. (2020), Early childhood, breakfast, and related tools; analysis of adults' function as mediators. European Journal of Psychology of Education, 35, 495-527. Cappella, J. N. (1981). Mutual influence in expressive behavior: Adult-adult and infant-adult dyadic interaction. Psychological bulletin, 89(1), 101.

Ishiguro, H. (2016). How a young child learns how to take part in mealtimes in a Japanese day-care center: A longitudinal case study. European Journal of Psychology of Education, 31, 13-27 Nonaka, T., & Goldfield, E. C. (2018). Mother-infant interaction in the emergence of a tool-using skill at mealtime: a process of affordance selection. Ecological Psychology, 30(3), 278-298 Norimatsu, H. (1993). Development of child autonomy in eating and toilet training: One-to three-year-old Japanese and French children. Early development and parenting, 2(1), 39-50. Pelaez, M., & Monlux, K. (2020). Early child learning of social and cognitive skills. The Encyclopedia of Child and Adolescent Development. Wiley. https://doi.org/10.1002/9781119171492. wecad072.

Contac Varsovia Hernández Eslava arahernandez02@uv.mx



Moving the Goalposts: The influence of Context on Behavioral Transitions in a Unilateral Manual Reaching Task



Dalton S. Cooper MSc, Tarcisio S. Moreira MSc, Tehran J. Davis PhD University of Cincinnati, Department of Psychology, Center for Cognition, Action, and Perception

Background

Hysteresis phenomena are a hallmark of complex systems and are formally observed when the relationship between the state of the system depends on the history of variation of some external, or control, parameter (Brilliant, 1958). It has been shown that hysteresis in transitions between behavioral modes can be exaggerated by incorporating (seemingly) functionally unrelated cognitive demands into the task (Lopresti-Goodman et al., 2009), suggesting that observed hysteresis may be affected by task constraints other than the immediate affordance boundary separating one behavior from another. The global landscape of affordances that may influence the dynamics of a behavior are not limited to the same behavioral scale as the immediate action. Factors such as goals, intentions, planned proceeding actions, or social contexts may all shift the topography of the affordance landscape and influence the dynamics of an action at the task level. The present investigation explores affordance-based transitions in behavior in the context of a relatively simple landscape of competing affordances.

Hypothesis: that both hysteresis effects and entropy trajectories would be influenced by the landscape of affordances. More specifically, the magnitude of the hysteresis effect and the pattern of entropy measures would vary as a function of the location of the goal

Method



Figure 1: Birds-eye schematic of the virtual tabletop. Participants moved the circle to the goal location (medium gray filled square at top) by passing through one of the apertures. Lighter squares with dashed outlines represent other possible goal locations. C = critical aperture; V = variant aperture

Twenty right-handed undergraduate students (11 women) participated for course credit. Participants completed a 2D bimanual reaching task to move an object from a start location though a choice of either constant or variable apertures, to a goal location. Virtual targets and obstacles were projected onto a table, where participants moved a physical Polhemus tracker through the space. Explicit decisions and x,y coordinates of the tracker were recorded.



Figure 2: Estimated marginal mean differences in transitions as (top) a function of direction; (middle) a function of goal location, (bottom) the interaction between goal distance and direction.

Results

Linear mixed effects modelling revealed effects for presentation direction, F(1, 129.69) = 16.18, p < .001; goal location, F(2, 135.45) = 7.66, p < .001; and an interaction between direction and goal distance, F(1, 124.74) = 11.10, p = .001. Mean transition points were (1) **lower in blocks of descending trials than for ascending trials;** and (2) **lower when the goal was located behind the variant aperture** compared to when it was behind the critical aperture or in the center of the table.

Entropy values were submitted to a linear mixed effects model, revealing an interaction between trial-to-transition and direction, F(8, 1300) = 2.32, p = .018. During ascending blocks, entropy values remained relatively stable with a slight decreasing trend over trials (F = 1.29, p > .05, *n.s.*). For descending blocks there were significant changes in entropy over trials (F = 2.21, p = .024). Neither goal location nor goal distance interacted with trial-to-transition (ps > .05)



Discussion

We suspect that the differences in the pattern of entropic fluctuations reflect an asymmetry in the presentation of available affordances (restricting vs providing). Here we may consider dual afforded routes as wells whose depth varies as a function of their π -value. During descending trials, this basin is initially deeper reflecting its larger π -value. but grows shallower; "pushing" the behavior out of the variant basin and into the constant basin. During ascending trials, behavior starts in a moderately stable basin of attraction. As the variant opening grows wider, its basin grows deeper, but



wider, its basin grows deeper, but Figure 4: Schematic of potential attractor landscape of the Critical and Variant apertures, demonstrating how the landscape changes over trials

importantly, this change has less direct impact on the current behavior. As the

variable opening becomes sufficiently large, the behavioral mode will gradually shift (fall) into the new pattern as it is more attractive. As the behavior is not being pushed out of its original pattern, it is less likely to be an erratic shift, and more of a gentle transition to a new state.

References

Brilliant, M. B. (1958). Theory of the analysis of nonlinear systems. 114. <u>https://doi.org/10.21236/AD0216209</u> Lopresti-Goodman, S. M., Richardson, M. J., Baron, R. M., Carello, C., & Marsh, K. L. (2009). Task Constraints on Affordance Boundaries. Motor Control, 13, 69–83. https://doi.org/10.1123/mcj.13.1.69









• Repeated measures ANOVA

Discussion & Conclusions

- Good overall performance
 - The properties of the object did not have a significant effect
 - Results consistent with previous research (visual models and de Paz et al. (2023)
- Multisensory integration
 - Sound was the worst group (*)
 - Functioning?
 - Not directly linked to the movement?
 - Cross-modality was not detrimental, but neither was ٠ it beneficial

•Repeated measures ANOVA

20 cm

0.9

0.85

0.8

0.75

0.7

0.65

Distance to the Object

25 cm

30 cm

- Vibration was the preferred stimulation (survey)
- The equivalence between groups indicated that the environmental info es amodal and it can be accessed through multiples sources of stimulation

References

6 cm

Diameter of the Object

9.5

9 8.71

8.5

8

4 cm

• De Paz, C., Ibáñez-Gijón, J., Travieso, D., & Jacobs, D. M. (2022). Grasping Objects with a Sensory Substitution Glove. International Journal of Human-Computer Studies, 102963. doi:10.1016/j.ijhcs.2022.102963

8 cm

Orientation of the Object

120

15

10

0

90°

· Gibson, J. J. (1979). The ecological approach to visual perception. Boston: Houghton Mifflin.

• Jeannerod, M. (1984). The timing of natural prehension movements. Journal of Motor Behavior, 16(3), 235-254. doi:10.1080/00222895.1984.10735319

• Smeets, J. B., & Brenner, E. (1999). A new view on grasping. Motor Control, 3(3), 237-271. doi:10.1123/mcj.3.3.237

• Stoffregen, T. A., & Bardy, B. G. (2001). On specification and the senses. Behavioral and brain sciences, 24(2), 195-213. doi:10.1017/S0140525X01003946

Interpersonal Coordination during Steady-State Isometric Force Production: Complementary or Compensatory?



Amu De Silva PT, DPT, Nicole Carver MA, Valeria Pinto, PT, MA, Tehran Davis, Ph. D., Paula Silva, Ph. D. Center for Cognition, Action, & Perception, Department of Psychology, University of Cincinnati, Cincinnati, OH, USA

Background

Success in joint actions often demands a high degree of motor coordination and precision between multiple actorsactors must complement one another's movements and efforts to best complete the shared task. While much work has been done investigating the coordination of movements (kinematics, e.g. Ramenzoni et al., 2011; Romero et. Al, 2015), to date comparatively little has investigated the coordination of effortful force production during a joint task. However, many real-world tasks depend upon the successful coordination of both produced movements and forces.

Recently, Grover et al (2022) investigated the intrapersonal, synergistic coordination of forces across limbs within individual actors as it was related to task performance. They found that actors' performance in a precision force stabilization task was predicted not only by the degree of synergistic compensation between limbs-as measured by variance along the uncontrolled manifold (UCM, Latash et al., 2008), but, more importantly, the regularity of the structure of variability of compensation-as measured by sample entropy (SampEn, Richman and Moorman, 2000). Here, we extended these findings to joint action, by investigating the degree and structure of synergic compensation during an interpersonal force production task. Our primary objectives were (1) to investigate the nature of interpersonal synergies in a force stabilization task as related to the amount of required force production; and (2) to determine whether the dynamics of compensation similarly predict joint task performance in an interpersonal force stabilization task.

Method

Participants: Thirty healthy dyads (43 F and 17 M), aged 18 to 38 years were recruited to participate.

Apparatus: standard pinch gauge dynamometer, two FS20 low-force compression load cells, Arduino/ Processing code, computer monitor.

Procedure: Participants sat next to each other in a chair in front of the monitor. Prior to the experiment, participants' MVC was measured; The max MVC value produced over two trials between each dyad (40.06 ±11.57 N) was used to scale the target force (10% & 30% of MVC). During the study, participants were asked to produce a stable force for 30 seconds per trial. In each trial, participants tried to produce and maintain a total force (FTOT) as close to the target force (FTARGET) displayed on the 17" monitor as possible with real-time visual feedback (see Figure 1). There were a total of 10 trials with random task conditions at 10% and 30% MCV for target force.



Results

The UCM approach was used to quantify the degree of synergy between the dyads performing steady-state isometric force stabilization task. To begin, we calculated the amount of variability within the UCM, or V_{UCM} . Following Grover et al, we extended the UCM method by computing the projection lengths of finger-force deviations from their mean state along the UCM. This allowed us to generate time series of finger-force variability along the UCM. We analyzed the regularity of these timeseries using sample entropy (SampEn_{UCM}). We submitted values of RMS error of deviations from target performance to a mixed effects model including overall V_{UCM} , SampEn_{UCM}, and the force demand Condition as predictors.



Discussion

This study aimed to determine the degree to which the task demands and the dynamics of synergistic compensation between actors inform about performance in a shared force production task. Our results indicated that joint task performance typically suffered (1) in conditions that demanded actors produce a greater amount of their maximum force, and (2) during trials where there was greater irregularity in the structure of compensatory variance (as measured by V_{UCM}). These two factors interacted with one another such that increasing irregularity of V_{UCM} had a more profound impact on joint task performance during trials of greater force production demands. Together these results are consistent with previous work investigating similar task demands in intrapersonal coordination of force production (Grover et. Al, 2022). Notably, increased overall V_{UCM} had a deleterious effect on joint task performance. This result was also consistent with previous work and raises the question of whether greater compensatory variance is always "good", but rather should be understood in the context of ongoing task demands. Here, it appears that a "strategy" that minimized the amount of compensatory variance between members of the dyad while maintaining more regularity in the fluctuations of variance along the UCM maximized dyadic performance in the force production task. Future work may investigate if these findings generalize to more functional tasks (both intra- and interpersonal) such as walking, postural control, and object manipulation in typical and clinical settings motor systems

Figure 1: Schematic of the joint finger force production task.

References

- Grover, F. M., Andrade, V., Carver, N. S., Bonnette, S., Riley, M. A., & Silva, P. L. (2022). A Dynamical Approach to the Uncontrolled Manifold: Predicting Performance Error During Steady-State Isometric Force Production. Motor Control, 26(4), 536-557.
- Latash, M. L., Gorniak, S., & Zatsiorsky, V. M. (2008). Hierarchies of synergies in human movements. Kinesiology (Zagreb, Croatia), 40(1), 29-38.
- Richman, J. S., & Moorman, J. R. (2000). Physiological time-series analysis using approximate entropy and sample entropy. American Journal of Physiology-Heart and Circulatory Physiology, 278(6), H2039–H2049.
- Riley, M. A., Richardson, M. J., Shockley, K., & Ramenzoni, V. C. (2011). Interpersonal synergies. Frontiers in Psychology, 2, doi: 10.3389/fpsyg.2011.00038.
- Romero, V., Kallen, R., Riley, M. A., & Richardson, M. J. (2015). Can discrete joint action be synergistic? Studying the stabilization of interpersonal hand coordination. Journal of Experimental Psychology: Human Perception and Performance, 41(5), 1223-1235.



Transfer of Learning in Perception with Haptic Substitution Devices

Tyler Duffrin & Jeffrey B. Wagman Department of Psychology, Illinois State University



INTRODUCTION

People can perceive many properties of an occluded surface when exploring that surface with a wooden rod...







How long?

...and when exploring that surface with an Enactive Torch



If the stimulation patterns that support perception of surface properties is invariant across medium...

...then calibration of perception of a given surface property ought to transfer from rod to torch, and vice versa



METHOD (continued)

Why inflated feedback? (1) increase the potential for recalibration (2) differentiate recalibration from change



How did we assess calibration? (1) ratios of perceived to actual distance (2) slopes and intercepts of regression lines

RESULTS

With Inflated Feedback, ratios increased from Pre-Test to Post-Test in all conditions...

> ...showing both calibration and transfer of recalibration



With No Feedback, ratios increased from

		Practio	e Rod; No	Feedback			Pra	actice	Torch; N	o Fe	edback	
	1.50] □ PRE	POST			1.50	٦	D PRE	POST			
UA :	1.25	1			: AD	1.25		Ŀ.	Ţ	H		

RESULTS (continued)

With Inflated Feedback, slopes increased from Pre-Test to Post-Test in all conditions...





...again, showing both calibration and transfer of recalibration

Moreover, intercepts did change from Pre-Test to Post-Test...

...suggesting a rescaling of perceived distance to stimulation and not a post-hoc adjustment of perceived distance values...

-	
	DISCUSSION
	The stimulation patterns that support perception of surface distance are likely to be invariant across medium
ack	Lawfully generates Relationship Invariant

Study of the rhythmic entrainment between speech and gestures in a conversational task

Tifenn Fauviaux¹, Ghilès Mostafaoui², Richard Schmidt³, Stéphane Raffard⁴⁻⁵, Ludovic Marin¹



- 1 EuroMov Digital Health in Motion, Univ Montpellier, IMT Mines Ales, Montpellier, France 2 - CY Cergy Paris Université - ETIS UMR 8051, Cergy-Pontoise, France
- 3 College of the Holy Cross, Worcester, MA
- 4 Univ Paul Valéry Montpellier 3, EPSYLON EA, 4556, Montpellier, France 5 - University Department of Adult Psychiatry, CHU Montpellier, Montpellier, France



Introduction

Social interactions involve a complex interplay of verbal and nonverbal cues, with rhythmic entrainment of bodily movements emerging once perceptual coupling is established. For example, to show agreement, the listener can produce a backchannel with soft vocalizations ("yeah") or quick gestures (nodding). While most studies focus on either motor behavior or language dynamics independently, very few have investigated the bi-modal (verbal and nonverbal) dynamics of social feedback.

Objective: Find rigorous research methods to enhance our comprehension of the bi-modal dynamics observed between participants within a conversational task.

Methods

Experimental Setup :

Dyads performed a conversational task where they had to answer 2 structured and 2 freeform questions (while standing or seating):

- C1: seated & structured C2: seated & freeform C3: standing & structured
- C4: standing & freeform

Movements of specific body parts were motion captured using the Optitrack technology.

Voices were recorded using lapel microphones.



Velocity 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.5 3.6 Time(Min) Interpersonal analyses (FZ) 0.0



Results

The results were analyzed on moments where gestures were detected, employing an individual velocity threshold for selection

ment's Peak of Par

Condition

ipant 1

2) Inter & Intrapersonal Movements/Speech analyses:

ipant 2 and M

Interpersonal Dynamics

0.15 0.1

60.05 ime 0 0.05

-0.1

Time lag between envelope's peak and movement's peak

1) Interpersonal Movement analyses:



Markers with the minimum lag: -C1: P1's Left Shoulder & P2's Head → 0.0416 sec -C2: P1's Left Hand & P2's Head → 0.0172 sec -C3: P1's Left Foot & P2's Right Shoulder → -0.0667 sec -C4: P1's Right Hand & P2's Left Hand → 0.0054 sec

Discussion and Conclusion Time Lag in Interpersonal Analyses:

In interpersonal movement analyses, the average time lag spans -25 to 55 seconds. However, in interpersonal movement/speech analyses, it remarkably narrows, ranges from -0.1 to 0.1 seconds. This discrepancy can be attributed to the occurrence of backchannels, where one participant engages in nonverbal communication through gestures (nodding for example) while the other participant is speaking.

Marker of P1

Marker with the minimum lag:

-C1: Left Hand → -0.0133 sec

-C2: Right Hand → 0.0167 sec

-C3: Right Hand → -0.0044 sec

-C4: Right Hand → 0.0144 sec

The importance of an accurate gesture discrimination method:

During interactions, individuals often engage in non-communicative movements (small oscillations while standing), which exhibit frequency variations. Although we employed a gesture detection threshold, non-communicative movements could explain the extremely weak minimum time lag found for interpersonal analyses. Therefore, it is crucial to implement a highly accurate gesture discrimination method that can differentiate communicative gestures related to the interaction from common movements.

Extending this methodology, along with a precise gesture discrimination method, will allows us to gain a deeper understanding of how both verbal and nonverbal cues interact to shape our social interactions.

This study was funded by the Agence Nationale de la Recherche (ANR) project ENHANCER #ANR-22-CE17-0036-03

Pouw, W. et al. Annals of the New York Academy of Sciences. 2020 Schmidt, RC, et Richardson, M. « Dynamics of Interpersonal Coordination ». In Understanding Complex Systems, 2008:281-308





Intrapersonal Dynamics

Marker of P2

Marker with the minimum lag:

-C3: Head → -0.02 sec

-C4: Left Hip → 0.0033 sec

-C1: Left Knee → 0.0033 sec

-C2: Right Shoulder \rightarrow -0.0133 sec

0.15

0.1 (s)

0.05

Sex differences in active tilt in a virtual driving game

Eugenia Garza, Danilo G. Arruda, George S. Bailey, Tongyu Nie, & Thomas A. Stoffregen Affordance Perception-Action Laboratory, University of Minnesota



UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA **Driven to Discover**

Introduction

Motion sickness is common when virtual locomotion (walking, driving, or flying) is presented via head-mounted displays (HMD). Many methods have been proposed to prevent or reduce motion sickness in this setting. One such proposal is for software to tilt the visual scene in the direction of left/right turns. The hypothesis is that a tilted visual scene could help to reduce the extent to which users tilt their own heads (as they normally do in physical vehicles; Fig. 1). The potential value of such an intervention rests on the assumption that people actually tilt their heads during turns in head-mounted virtual reality. Yet no existing research has evaluated actual head tilt among HMD users. Accordingly, an assessment of active head tilt among HMD users was the primary motivation for our study. Our second motivation relates to sex. In HMD-based virtual reality, motion sickness is more common among women than men. In addition, patterns of postural activity that are related to motion sickness differ between women and men. For these reasons, we compared women and men.

Method

Seated young adults (22 women, 19 men) drove a virtual car using a headmounted display (Oculus). In a between-participants design, 20 participants drove a "Gran Prix" course that had many turns, while 21 drove an "Indy car" course that had few turns (Fig. 2). Participants controlled the vehicle using a steering wheel and foot pedals (accelerator and brake). Each participant completed a single trial, lasting 15 minutes. Using a magnetic tracking system (Polhemus), we evaluated the kinematics of the head and torso during virtual driving, extracting 3 dependent variables (Fig. 3).

Results

As expected, driving was faster with fewer turns (Fig. 4). Women drove more slowly than men (Fig. 5). Overall tilt increased across the 15-minute driving sessions (Fig. 6), consistent with generalized effects of exposure time on movement during VR exposure. There were no main effects of Condition, or Sex on movement. However, the Condition \times Sex interaction was significant for tilt of the torso, and for overall lean (Fig. 7).

Discussion

The results demonstrate that adults actively tilted their own bodies while driving a virtual vehicle presented via an HMD, and that they varied the magnitude and direction of tilt in response to variations in conditions (tracks). Interestingly, our results suggest that participants tilted the body (i.e., the torso, as well as overall lean), but did not tilt the head relative to the torso. Importantly, these effects were observed only among male participants. That is, men varied their tilt as a function of track conditions, but women did not (Fig. 7). These sex differences may be related to sex differences in cybersickness (women are more susceptible than men), and may indicate that sex should be taken into account in the design of mitigation techniques. In particular, mitigation strategies that rely on "virtual head tilt" may have differing effectiveness for men and women.





Fig. 1. Forces acting on the body during straight and curved physical driving (top). Body control in physical driving (middle). Hypothetical body control in virtual driving (bottom).







Fig. 2. Tracks for virtual driving. Top: More turns. Bottom: Fewer turns.



Fig. 4. Driving speed (laps completed in 15 minutes) as a function of Condition.





Fig. 3. Operational definition of tilt of the head (top), torso (middle), and body (bottom).



Fig. 5. Driving speed (laps completed in 15 minutes) as a function of Sex.





Fig. 6. Mean absolute tilt as a function of time during the 15minute driving session for the head, the torso, and the body. W1, W2, W3: First, middle, and final 2 minutes, respectively.



Thomas A. Stoffregen, George Bailey, and Danilo Arruda were supported by the National Science Foundation (CHS-1901423). Eugenia Garza was supported by a University of Minnesota University Research Scholar award.

Perception of affordances for receiving serves in virtual volleyball: Effects of serve height in women and men

杰 School of Kinesiology UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA Driven to Discover

Danilo G. Arruda¹, Jeffrey B. Wagman² & Thomas A. Stoffregen¹ ¹Affordance Perception-Action Laboratory, University of Minnesota ²Department of Psychology, Illinois State University



Introduction

Many affordances scale to body dimensions, such that perception seems disparate when scaled extrinsically, but universal when scaled intrinsically (Fig. 1). We investigated the perception of affordances for different ways to receive a serve in volleyball, where the importance of body scale is modulated by dynamic variables. Generally, players employ one of two techniques (Fig. 2): 1) raise the arms and receive the ball with the fingertips or 2) lower the arms and receive the ball with the lower forearm, or the heel of the hands. In a headmounted virtual environment (Fig. 3), participants viewed approaching serves, and responded to each serve by attempting to field it as they would in a physical volleyball game. We tracked the location of the hands for each serve. We classified participants' responses as being either overhand or underhand.

Few studies have investigated possible sex differences in affordance perception. Anecdotal evidence suggests that, in volleyball, women are more likely to use the underhand technique. We asked whether any sex difference would be related to or independent of sex differences in body dimensions (height, and maximum vertical reach).



court.

Fig. 2. Techniques to receive serves in volleyball

Methods

Participants were experienced, competitive volleyball players, mean age 20.75 years. There were 20 men (mean height 1.80 m) and 17 women (mean height 1.64 m); the difference in mean height was statistically significant. Each participant wore an HMD (Oculus) and responded to 30 serves. Through software design, we manipulated the height (within participants) at which each serve arrived, with 6 values for each participant (see Fig. 5A), and 5 trials for each height.

Results

Participants' responses were categorical (Fig. 4). The results are summarized in Fig 5. We separately analyzed the proportion of underhand serve receives as a function of a) serve height in meters, b) standing height, and c) maximum vertical reach. The main effect of serve height was significant in all analyses. When scaled in meters, the 50% transition did not differ by sex, but this difference was significant when serve height was scaled by standing height, or by maximum vertical reach. The two intrinsic scaling conditions did not differ from each other.



Fig. 3. Head-mounted display, hand tracking device, and virtual volleyball

В

Fig. 4. Representative responses.







Serve Height/Maximum Reach

Fig. 1. Warren's (1984), classic effects of extrinsic and intrinsic scaling.

Fig. 5. The proportion of underhand serve receives as a function of serve height and sex. A. Serve height in meters. B. Serve height as a proportion of standing height. C. Serve height as a proportion of maximum vertical reach.

Discussion

Rather than replicating classic effects of body scale on affordance perception (Fig. 1), when including sex as an independent variable we found the opposite pattern (Fig. 5). When scaled intrinsically, the transition between techniques differed by sex in ways that were independent of sex differences in body dimensions. Our results demonstrate the perception of affordances for receiving serves in virtual volleyball, and suggest that sex should be analyzed as an independent variable in affordance research. Women and men differ in height, but our results suggest that affordances for receiving volleyball serves may be more strongly influenced by other sex differences.

ETAPS

Calibration of nested affordances when navigating through apertures on an e-scooter



Gisele C. Gotardi¹, Matt Miller-Dicks², Ludovic Seifert¹

¹ Physical Education and Sports Science, CETAPS, Université de Rouen Normandie, Mont-Saint-Aignan, France ² School of Sport, Health and Exercise Science, University of Portsmouth, United Kingdom

gcgotardi@gmail.com



Methodology

Participants

- Group 1: HBw=Sw
- Group 2: HBw>Sw (+ 10cm)
- Group 3: HBw<Sw (- 10cm)</p>

Aperture conditions

From MAC-1 ratio to MAC+8 ratio, in increments of 0.05

Experimental task

• To approach the aperture at a comfortable speed (8 km/h) and to cross through it avoiding the collision

1)



Figure 1. The experimental bicycle with the cargo bag attached to the frame. The approaching and stopping zones of the cycle path until the obstacle (white foam cuboid). Initial distances placed at 21.6m and 37m to the obstacle were used for low-speed and high-speed conditions, respectively.

MAC test

Maximum action capabilities (MAC) will be measured to establish the minimum passable aperture width for each participant.



Figure 2. a) percentage of success across trials; b) ratio aperture-handlebar width (A/H) per experimental group during the maximum action capabilities test (MAC).



Figure 3. Performance (Prob. Success) by modes of action for a) group HBw=Sw; b) group HBw<Sw; c) group HBw>Sw. HBw, handlebar width; Sw, shoulder width; MAC, maximum action capabilities test.

Conclusions

The handlebar width changed the participants' action capabilities and how they exploited the modes of action to overcome the obstacle.

Modes of action

- Facing (+ braking)
- Turning (+ braking)
- Escape



Data analysis

Rate of successful trials (%)

- Performance (Prob. Success) by modes of action (Franchak & Adolph, 2014)
- These observations seem to indicate that body- and action-scaling interplay to determine action capabilities and support calibration to changes in aperture widths.

Funding

This work is being funded by Normandie Region CPER-FEDER (ID: RIN Percycle)



Nested affordances may explain how we remember and fulfill intentions - without memory.

Ecological Prospective Memory: Grounding Prospective Control within Nested Affordances Gray Freeman Thomas & Alexandra Paxton + University of Connecticut

[grayft@uconn.edu]

PROSPECTIVE MEMORY:

Setting an intention in the present and successfully executing the necessary actions to fulfill that intention in the future

TRI-CUE MODELS:

- Traditional cognitivist approaches to prospective memory (PM) propose three unique, discrete types of cues available for successful execution [1-4]: time-based (), event-based (), and location-based ().
- TCM approaches have proposed multi-process approach to recognizing these cues that includes both attentional monitoring (¹/_k) and spontaneous **retrieval** ([5].

SPATIOTEMPORAL SPECIFICATION MODEL:

- •We propose an ecological alternative: the spatiotemporal specification model (SSM). The cues proposed by TCM are parts of an inseparable whole. Every moment has a time, location, and action (i.e., event) that specifies it uniquely in the world. That reality must be reflected in PM.
- We build this theory the ecological concept of nested affordances-opportunities to act that become available due to a previous action changing the landscape of possible opportunities.
- We argue for thinking of nested affordances as an exploit-to-detect-and-exploit method -- a strategy to act in a particular way in the present that cascades into future opportunities for intended actions (See Fig 2.).
- Since remembered affordances are action-scaled like perceived affordances [6], we argue that an ecological account of remembering can account for the persisting awareness of objects and events occluded from view. (See Fig. 3.)



Fig. 1: The three components of an event necessarily and together specify the intention to be executed



Fig 2: We can exploit the current structure of the environment to reveal more information to be detected and exploited in the future, even if we cannot predict what it might be. For example, a person's ability to build a fence changes dramatically with tools: Instead of stacking stones by hand, a hammer, nails, and wood afford the opportunity to build a tall fence that may, in turn, afford other opportunities for action-like letting their dog outside without a leash. Thus, acting in the present cascades into future opportunities for intended actions



Fig 3: A person's self-reported maximum reaching height increases when an implement that would increase their reaching ability was present and after it had been removed from their view [6]. An ecological remembering can therefore account for the persisting awareness of affordances even when the objects are no longer visible

RESEARCH PROPOSALS:

Compare TCM and SSM.

Contrast PM fulfillment of a naturalistic intention using artificially cues proposed by TCM with a spatiotemporally specified PM (e.g., a navigation task on a university campus varying the specificity and saliency).

REFERENCES:

[1]Brewer, G. A., Knight, J. B., Marsh, R. L., & Unsworth, N. (2010a). Memory & Cognition, 38(3), 304-311. https://doi.org/10.3758/mc.38.3.304

[2] Brewer, G. A., Marsh, R. L., Clark-Foos, A., Meeks, J. T., Cook, G. I., & Hicks, J. L. (2010b). Applied Cognitive Psychology, 25(4), 632-640, https://doi.org/10.1002/acp.1733

[3] Conte, A. M., & McBride, D. M. (2018). Memory, 26(7), 936–945. https://doi.org/10.1080/09658211.2018.1432662 [4] O'Rear, A. E., & Radvansky, G. A. (2019). Quarterly Journal of Experimental Psychology, 72(3), 491-507. [6] Einstein, G. O., & McDaniel, M. A. (2005). *Current Directions in Psychological Science*, *14*(6), 286–290.
 [6] Wagman, J. B., Thomas, B. J., McBride, D. M., & Day, B. M. (2013). *Ecological Psychology*, *25*(1), 63-80.

Habit Formation through Ecological PM.

Manipulate the saliency of where and when to accomplish an intention of developing a reading habit (e.g., read for 30 min. each day).





Stochastic Resonance Influences Heaviness Perception Department of Biomechanics, University of Nebraska at Omaha, Omaha, NE USA

CONTRIBUTORS: Allison A. Grunkemeyer and Aaron D. Likens

Introduction

- · Heaviness perception is the ability to use haptic feedback from effortful touch to determine the weight of a wielded object [1].
- The inertia tensor provides information about how mass is distributed in a rigid body (Figure 1) [2].
- · Recent studies have provided evidence that adding noise to a weak stimulus can enhance a person's ability to detect it [2].
- · Introducing a subthreshold stimulus embedded with noise may, in some cases, improve sensations gained from limb movements [1].

We hypothesized that subthreshold noise of various statistical structures and mass will influence accuracy in perceiving heaviness of a wielded object.



Figure 1. Effect of varying mass loads on eigenvectors.

Methodology

- 10 adults (> 19 years) participated in this study.
- Participants were seated for the duration of the trial with a haptic device fastened to their wielding arm, as seen in Figure 2.
- Subjects wielded an occluded object with varying masses
- Subthreshold stimuli were introduced via a haptic device with different signals of colored noise.
- Noise (none, pink, white) × mass (0, 50, 100, 150 g)



Figure 2. Experimental set up. Mass apparatus conditions include 0, 50. 100, and 150 g. Active markers (PhaseSpace Inc.) were applied to the participants' wielding arm and the apparatus

Data Analysis

- Percent error based on the physical scale markings (Figure 3).
- ARFIMA modeling to quantify presence of longrange correlations in displacement time series (Figure 4) [3].
- For statistical analysis, we computed 2 two-way ANOVAs via Linear Mixed Effect Models to determine the effects of mass and noise on percent error and d.

How many times heavier was the second object in relation to the standard?



Results

- · Noise and mass had a significant interaction effect on percent error.
 - F(6,85) = 2.72, p = 0.02
- Percent error decreased at the largest mass level for pink and no noise and increased for white noise (Table 1).
- Neither mass nor noise revealed any main effects or interactions on movement dynamics. • F(6,95) = 0.46, p = 0.84
- Presence of long-range correlations in all displacement time series (Table 2).



Figure 4. Frequency of model "wins" (i.e., rank order = 1) by condition

contrast	Mass	estimate	SE	df	t	р
none - pink	0	-2.74499	25.71771	83.62872	-0.10674	0.993739
none - white	0	32.12261	24.76886	83.29278	1.296895	0.400931
pink - white	0	34.8676	24.39328	83.22265	1.429394	0.330589
none - pink	50	-10.6175	24.18397	83.15399	-0.43903	0.899345
none - white	50	13.36269	23.52914	83.02978	0.567921	0.837512
pink - white	50	23.98021	24.22794	83.1537	0.989775	0.585358
none - pink	100	21.09061	23.67186	83.05848	0.890957	0.647505
none - white	100	13.9829	23.76087	83.09073	0.588484	0.826666
pink - white	100	-7.10771	23.94322	83.03008	-0.29686	0.952612
none - pink	150	-0.77417	25.04881	83.33689	-0.03091	0.999474
none - white	150	-59.3336	25.26425	83.26598	-2.34852	0.054718
pink - white	150	-58.5595	23,7723	83.07007	-2.46335	0.041471

Discussion

- As a general summary of the results, we found that percent error decreased at the largest mass in the no noise and pink noise conditions.
- White noise appeared to degrade one's ability to perceive weight at the largest mass.
- Our results suggest that introducing subthreshold noise influences one's ability to perceive the weight of an occluded object.
- It is likely that the direction of influence depends on the statistical structure of the subthreshold noise and the underlying signal (Figure 5).



Figure 5. Noise enhanced information in a threshold system. The system involves the signal (solid line), noise (colored line), and threshold (dashed line). The signal in the top panel is a sinusoidal wave superimposed with white Gaussian noise. The bottom panel is the same sinusoidal wave but superimposed with pink Gaussian noise. Superimposed Gaussian noise with varying statistical structures elevate the signal above threshold, illustrated in the spike train above each graph.

Conclusion

Current results suggest that the effects of noise and mass on the accuracy and movement dynamics of wielding patterns may improve spatial recognition of occluded objects. Future directions include:

- Investigate broader mass range
- · Investigate optimal noise structure
- · Investigate different populations and pathologies

References

- 1.Pagano Journal of et al., Applied Biomechanics, 14: 331-359, 1998.
- 2. Nozaki et al., Physical Review Letters, 82: 2402-2405, 1999.
- 3. Torre et al., British Journal of Mathematical and Statistical Psychology 60: 85-106, 2007.

Acknowledgements

This research was supported by an UNO GRACA to AG, and NASA Nebraska Space Grant FY23 Fellowship to AG.

Table 2. Analysis of 3D Euclidean Distance series during wielding with different noise types									
		1	Noise Condit	tion					
	Model Selection	None	Pink	White					
Mean ARFIMA weight	BIC	0.683	0.686	0.718					
ARFIMA as the best model	BIC	34/37	37/39	40/40					



The influences of visual angle in visually-guided eye movements on postural control



Shin-Wei Huang, Po-Wei Chang, Chih-Hui Chang Department of Physical Education, National Kaohsiung Normal University, Taiwan



Background

The effects of the visually-guided eye movements on body sway have been the focus of studies since the 1980s (White et al. 1980). As the advancement of eye-tracking technology, the purpose of this study is twofold. First, it aims to verify whether eye movement large than 20° horizontally elicit head rotation (Hallett, 1986; Stoffregen et al. 2007). Second, it aims to compare the difference between the effect of fixation and horizontal visuallyguided eye movements on body sway.

Methods

Participants

Thirty-two healthy young adults (M = 21.34 yrs., SD = 1.69 yrs.) participated and they had normal or correctedto-normal vision. The experimental protocol was approved by the Research Ethics Committee for Human Behavioral Sciences of National Cheng Kung University Apparatus and Material

The sensors of the magnetic motion tracker (Flock of Birds, FOB., Ascension Technologies, Inc., Burlington, VT) were attached to the participants' head (above the safety helmet of the bicycle) and torso (seventh cervical vertebrae). Eye tracking system (Tobii Pro Nano) was used to record the eye movements of the participants. The experimental setup is as Figure 1. Procedure

The FOB system recoded the displacement and rotation of the participant's head at 60 Hz. The eye movement system was fixed 65 cm in front of the participant, slightly below eye level, and measured the eye movement of the participant at 60 Hz. The visual task is a video clip generated by i-Movie and is projected on a 54.5 x 31.2 cm screen. Participants were required to stand and fixate (0°) or track the red target, which was approximately 1.15 degrees in size (Stoffregen et al., 2006) and moved at visual angles of 11, 24, and 36 degrees from the left to the right at 0.5 Hz on the screen. The red target was presented in the center of the screen and at the participants' visual eye height level.

Results and Discussion

Head rotation

Results of one way ANOVA on the velocity of the head movement in the yaw (left/right head turn) direction among four conditions indicated a significant effect, F = 2.80, p =.045, post-hoc analysis showed that velocity of the head movement in 24° visual angle were greater than 0° and 11° (see Figure 2).These results verified that eye movement large than 24° horizontally elicit head rotation. This would induce vestibular ocular reflex (VOR) and affect the results of the eye movement. Therefore, in the following analysis, we only compared the differences between 0° and 11° visually-guided eye movement



Figure 2. The velocity of head movement in the yaw direction, illustrating statistically significant effect among visual angles. The error bars represent the standard error of the mean.

Linear Body movement in 2 visual tasks

Results of paired sample t-tests on the positional variability (SD of the displacement) of the head and torso movement in the AP axis between 0° and 11° visually-guided eye movement was significant, t(30) = 3.26 and 2.39, p = .003 and .024, respectively. The position variability was greater in fixation as compared to the 11° horizontal visually-guided eye movements (see Figure 3). Without head rotation, the effect of horizontal visually-guided eye movement on body sway was reduced as compared to fixate at a point. For velocity of the head and torso movement in the AP and ML axis between 0° and 11° visually-guided eye movement paired sample t-tests were not significant, p > .05.



Eye movement in 2 visual tasks

Results of paired sample t-tests showed the difference between 0° and 11° visually-guided eye movement were all significant at p< .001. In the number of fixation, t(31)= -14.16, number of fixation in the 11° was greater than 0° visually-guided eye movement . In fixation duration, t(31) = 5.81, fixation duration in the 0° was greater than 11°. In number of saccade, t(31) = -11.41, the number of saccade in the 11° was greater than 0°. In saccade duration, t(31) = -11.41, saccade duration in the 11° was greater than 0°.

Conclusion

This study verified that eye movement large than 20 degrees horizontally elicits faster head rotation (Hallett, 1986). Additionally, 11 degrees of horizontal eye movement induced more stable body sway as compare to eye fixation at a fixed point which supports the functional role between eye movement and postural control (Stoffregen et al., 2007).

Reference

Hallett, P. E. (1986). Eye movements. In K. R. Boff, L. Kaufman, & J. P. Thomas (Eds.), *Handbook of human perception and performance* (Vol. 1, pp. 10-11–10-112). New York: Wiley.
Stoffregen, T. A., Bardy, B. G., Bonnet, C. T., Hove, P., & Oullier, O. (2007). Postural sway and the frequency of

horizontal eye movements. *Motor Control, 11*(1), 86-102. White, K. D., Post, R. B., & Leibowitz, H. W. (1980). Saccadic eye movements and body sway. *Science, 208*(4444), 621-623. https://doi.org/10.1126/science.73 67888

Figure 1. The experimental setup.

Figure 3. The positional variability of the head and torso movement in the AP axis, illustrating statistically significant effect between visual angle 0° and 11°. The error bars represent the standard error of the mean.

The present study was supported by the Ministry of Science and Technology, Taiwan (MOST 111-2410-H-017-015)

Developing a flow-based notation to describe architectural and urban experiences

Makoto Inagami, Nagoya University, Japan

BACKGROUND & PURPOSE

For architectural and urban planning, various methods have been proposed to describe environmental experiences; in particular, "notations" score sequential experiences during locomotion.

Gibson's ecological theory of perception emphasizes the role of optical flow as a source of information for perceiving the environment and controlling actions.

This study, using a technique of image processing, developed a notation based on optical flow to quantitatively describe environmental experiences.



Thiel, P. (1997). *People, paths, and purposes: Notation for a participatory envirotecture.* University of Washington Press (p. 247)

Notation of surface layout



Halprin, L. (1969). The RSVP cycles:

George Braziller, Inc. (p. 69)

Creative processes in the human environment.



ODJECIJ	
vert. element	tree, high planter
- horiz. element	🖁 tree, law planter
🤨 planar element	X tree, broad plant
H entrance	P lighting fixture
t standing person	Ф кюзк
•> moving person	🗄 bus shelter
Person w bundle	♥ flower planter
arowd	E bus
h seated person	🖶 bench
🕸 cop	× machine
ANX words	III Storefronts
≮ window shopp	er B wastebin

ing C Turning dung Percrosching, enclosing ns + >> moving, moving fast climbing touching touching

METHOD & EXAMPLE

An observer walked a route while holding a panoramic video camera at eye level and thereby recorded the environment from all directions except the view from behind the observer's body.

An algorithm processed the video data to estimate optical flow by detecting multiple vectors as the displacements of pixels between two sequential image frames.

The vectors' magnitudes were converted to angular velocities and averaged for each direction (front, right, left, upper, and lower) as an index of flow's intensity.



5760×2880 pixels, 30 tps

Recording the environment



A total of 4001 points were uniformly distributed with the Fibonacci lattice.

Initial nainte of flow vestere



"Motation" of shopping street

Detecting optical flow with the Farneback algorithm



The present example showed that the average angular velocity reflected the distance to environmental surfaces, the richness of environmental textures, and the direction of locomotion.



Changes in the intensity of optical flow along a route

Lévy-like visual search and hazard detection performance in older drivers

Makoto Inagami¹, Hirofumi Aoki¹, Kan Shimazaki^{1,2}, Aiko Iwase^{1,3}, Yuto Susuki^{1,3}, & Hiroko Terasaki¹ ¹ Nagoya University, ² Kindai University, & ³ Tajimi Iwase Eye Clinic (Japan)

BACKGROUND & PURPOSE

A variety of foraging animals exhibit a movement pattern known as Lévy flights or Lévy walks, which enables an efficient search for foods under certain conditions.

This study applied such phenomena to the visual search of older drivers, and examined the presence of a Lévy-like pattern and its effect on the detection of potential hazards.



Simulated Lévy flights and examples of previous studies

EXPERIMENT

A head-mounted display, equipped with an eye-tracking system, was used to present two driving scenarios, in which ten hazards appeared along the way.

The driver's car traveled automatically, and participants (N = 100) scanned the traffic environment as they do in their everyday driving.



Two driving scenarios and ten potential hazards

RESULTS & DISCUSSION

By analyzing the head- and eye-tracking data, we scored the detection of the hazards, and also obtained the frequency distribution of the amount of change in the gaze direction (i.e., intergaze angle).

The results showed that all participants exhibited Lévy-like gaze movement, but its properties (μ and r^2) were not related to the score of hazard detection.



This suggests that older drivers have acquired an efficient search pattern, but their performance depends more on other skills, such as predicting hazards.

Concurrent Schedules of Reinforcement Impact Affordance Boundaries in a Grasping Task

Robert W. Isenhower, Catalina E. Apodaca, and Kenny U. Ruiz Department of Psychology, Rider University

> Optimal pi-number

1.0

0.1

0.0

0.5

Introduction

Affordances—possibilities for action scaled to organisms' action capabilities (Gibson, 1979)—have an important role within the experimental analysis of behavior (EAB; Killeen & Jacobs, 2017).

Research in EAB demonstrates that action-scaled constraints—such as ratios of lever height to fore-paw distance—guide free operant behavior in unconditioned lever-pressing in rats and hamsters (Cabrera et al., 2013)

Additionally, affordance constraints guide choice between equal concurrent schedules of reinforcement. Levers close to the optimal pi-number afford lever pressing with faster bout initiation and faster withinbout responding (Jiménez et al., 2019).

Previous research with humans has found that grasping behavior (i.e., grasping an object with one hand vs. two hands) conforms to predictable affordance boundaries based on a ratio of hand-span to object length. This transition occurs at approximately two-thirds of the participant's handspan (Lopresti-Goodman et al., 2009) and involves a choice between two concurrently available action modes.

The current study utilizes a similar grasping task in order to examine human behavior as influenced by:

1) Unequal concurrent schedules of reinforcement 2) Affordance constraints defined by the organism-environment system $O-S^d \rightarrow R \rightarrow Sr$

We expected the "organism-discriminated" operant, as defined by the specific "motivational, perceptual, anatomical, and biomechanical properties of the organism" (Killeen & Jacobs, 2017), to affect responding under unequal concurrent schedules of reinforcement. This influence should be

captured in the pi-number of transition between 1H and 2H grasping.

Method

Participants and Setting

Six right-handed Rider University students (5 undergraduate, 1 graduate; 4 female, 2 male; age 20-25) participated. Sessions took place in a 3 m x 4 m research room with one-way mirror.



A hand-held tally counter was used to keep track of points. A computer was used to record data and program reinforcement. A small desk with two dots 30 cm apart aligned along the midsagittal plane was used to present stimuli. Sessions were video recorded.



Design

A-B-A-C withdrawal/reversal design

- A: Baseline (BL1, BL2), no reinforcement or feedback
- B & C: conc VR 2 VR 6 (or conc VR 6 VR 2) schedules for 1H or 2H grasps

Procedure

Planks were presented to participants on a table one at a time in a random order. Participants were instructed to grasp (only by touching their green ends) and move the planks from the dot closer to the dot further and do so using either one or two hands (Task adapted from Isenhower et al., 2005).

In the A phase (BL1, BL2), no other instructions, reinforcement, or feedback was provided. In B and C phases, participants were told that they could earn points based on the way they move the objects, with a goal to maximize points. Points were delivered on concurrent (conc) VR/VR schedules. In B and C phases, 1H responses produced points on a VR 2 schedule, and 2H responses produced points on a VR 6 schedule, or vice versa. Order of 1H and 2H was counterbalanced across participants.

Sessions comprised 22 trials. Three sessions of each condition were run before moving to the next condition. Average session time was 3 min 28 seconds.

Participant hand span was measured so that pi-numbers of transition could be calculated—see procedures in Isenhower et al. (2005) and Lopresti-Goodman et al. (2009).

Response Measurement and Interobserver Agreement (IOA)

A response was defined as the participant picking up an object with one or two hands (as above) and



Average pi-number of transition between 1H and 2H grasping across conditions for the individual participants. Half the participants (left) were exposed to 1H first; half (right) were exposed to 2H first.

Discussion

The denser schedules of reinforcement for 2H grasps resulted in lower pi-numbers of transition with proportionally smaller objects lifted with 2H, and an increased probability of responding with 2H. Motivational properties (points) in addition to "perceptual, anatomical, and biomechanical properties" systematically affected affordance actualization.

Transition pi-number for 1H grasps did not differ from BL1 or BL2 at the group level. This may be due to task asymmetry: It was possible to grasp every stimulus with 2 hands but only some stimuli with 1 hand. However, two participants, Keith and Sally, showed an effect of the 1H manipulation.

There were no differences between BL1 (before the first operant contingency was applied) and BL2 (after the first contingency was removed), indicating that the influence of the contingency was transient.

Within-participant variability in BL1 was relatively small. Between-participant variability was relatively large.

The typical VR/VR pattern—responding exclusively to the schedule with the lowest response requirement (Cuvo et al., 1998)—was not observed. Leveraging affordance constraints in applied settings may be an effective tool to change the probability of free-operant behavior.

Future Directions

- Use a modified stimulus set where every object can be moved with 1-hand
- Use a restricted range of stimuli (all low pi-numbers or all high pi-numbers) to examine affordance boundaries (optimal vs. critical) more systematically
- Control for effector size with small/large hand span groups

moving it from the point closer to them to the point further away.

A second independent observer collected data on 50% of sessions. IOA was calculated trial-by-trial. A trial with agreement was when both observers agreed on 1H or 2H.

Percent agreement = (trials with agreement / total trials) X 100.

Overall, there was 99.0% (range = 86.4-100%) agreement in responses.



- Include an equal schedules condition in a parametric analysis of other concurrent schedules
- Use concurrent VI/VI schedules to look at matching behavior

References

- Cabrera, F., Sanabria, F., Jiménez, Á. A., & Covarrubias, P. (2013). An affordance analysis of unconditioned lever pressing in rats and hamsters. Behavioural Processes, 92, 36–46.
- Cuvo, A. J., Lerch, L. J., Leurquin, D. A., Gaffaney, T. J., & Poppen, R. L. (1998). Response allocation to concurrent fixed-ratio reinforcement schedules with work requirements by adults with mental retardation and typical preschool children. Journal of Applied Behavior Analysis, 31(1), 43-63.
- Gibson, J. J. (1979). The Ecological Approach to Visual Perception. Boston, MA: Houghton Mifflin.
- Isenhower, R. W., Marsh, K. L., Carello, C., Baron, R. M., & Richardson, M. J. (2005). The specificity of intrapersonal and interpersonal affordance boundaries: intrinsic versus absolute metrics. In H. Heft, & K. L. Marsh (Eds.), Studies in Perception and Action VIII: Thirteenth International Conference on Perception and Action (pp. 54-58).
- Jiménez, Á. A., Ochoa, D. A., Amazeen, P. G., Amazeen, E. L., & Cabrera, F. (2019). Affordances guide choice behavior between equal schedules of reinforcement in rats. *Ecological Psychology*, 31(4), 316-331.
- Killeen, P. R., & Jacobs, K. W. (2017). Coal is not black, snow is not white, food is not a reinforcer: the roles of affordances and dispositions in the analysis of behavior. The Behavior Analyst, 40(1), 17–38.

Lopresti-Goodman, S. M., Richardson, M. J., Baron, R. M., Carello, C., & Marsh, K. L. (2009). Task constraints on affordance boundaries. *Motor Control*, 13, 69-83.

Attractive stepping-stones landscapes: Preference for stone-height variation appears to be age independent¹

Amy M. Jeschke, Rob Withagen, Frank T.J.M. Zaal, & Simone R. Caljouw

Department of Human Movement Sciences, University Medical Center Groningen, University of Groningen, the Netherlands



In addition, using Kendall's tau-b, we found for nearly every configuration and age group sig. positive correlations (*α* = .05) between scores on:

1. Fun & aesthetic appeal

(only for young adults the p-values for 'gap width', 'size', and H-GW were respectively .052, .195, and .058)

2. Challenge & risk

Discussion

The preference for stone-height variation in a stepping-stones landscape appears to be age independent

- Why are people generally attracted to variation in stone-height?
 - One may prefer the aesthetic appeal of the height configuration. Yet, no correlation found between fun and beauty for children⁴. Is the reason for the height-preference different among the various age groups?
 - Or is it governed by a factor that we have not examined thus far? People of all ages might appreciate the change of perspective or the "kinetic joyride" when stepping on the higher stones.



¹Jeschke, A.M., Withagen, R., Zaal, F.T.J.M. & Caljouw, S.R. (in revision). Attractive stepping stones landscapes: Preference for stone height variation appears to be age independent. *Ecological Psychology*.
 ²Jeschke, A. M., de Lange, A. M., Withagen, R., & Caljouw, S. R. (2020). Crossing the gap: older adults do not create less challenging stepping stone configurations than young adults. *Frontiers in psychology*, *11*, 1657.
 ³Jongeneel, D., Withagen, R., & Zaal, F. T. (2015). Do children create standardized playgrounds? A study on the gap-crossing affordances of jumping stones. *Journal of Environmental Psychology*, *34*, 31–137.
 ⁵Jeschke, A. M., Caljouw, S. R., & Withagen, R. (2022). Height, Size, and/or Gap Width Variation in Jumping Stone Configurations: Which Form of Variation Attracts Children the Most?. *Ecological Psychology*, *34*(3), 90-108.

Fractal Analysis of Pilot Pupil Size During Virtual Reality Piloting Tasks Department of Psychology, College of Arts and Sciences, University of Cincinnati Corinne Jorgenson, Dieter Vanderelst, Nikita Kuznetzov

Introduction

For this analysis, we explored the fractal properties of pilots' pupil diameter during piloting tasks of varying difficulty. We examined two groups of pilots: those with experience piloting actual or simulated aircraft, and those with no experience piloting actual or simulated aircraft. Specifically, we hypothesized that the fractal properties of experienced pilots' pupil dilation/contraction would approach 1/f noise, where the pupil dilation/contraction patterns of inexperienced pilots would show a breakdown in fractal scaling, especially for more difficult tasks.

Method

Participants: Data for this analysis was provided by the Department of the Air Force - MIT Artificial Intelligence (AI) Accelerator's CogPilot Data Challenge 2.0 (Rao, et al, 2022). This challenge aims to explore quantitative performance measurements and multimodal physiological data to assess a student pilot's competency. CogPilot provides data on 35 subjects (Ss) piloting a simulated aircraft. Each Ss flew three attempts at each of four levels of difficulty, such that there is a data set of 35x4x3 (35 subjects, 4 levels of difficulty, 3 runs per level of difficulty).

Procedure: Subjects piloted a virtual aircraft while connected to various sensors. The levels of difficulty (1-4) corresponded with increasingly more challenging weather conditions. Higher values are more difficult. The difficulty levels simulated visual flight rules (VFR, the simplest condition), instrument flight rules (IFR, the most challenging condition), and two intermediate levels.

For this analysis, we divided the pilots into two groups. The first group, inexperienced pilots, were those Ss who had less than 948 hours (the mean of total fixed wing experience) of actual and simulated fixed wing flight experience. The second group, experienced pilots, were those who had greater than 948 hours of actual and simulated fixed wing flight experience.

The data were prepared prior to analysis. Blinks (recorded by the hardware as -1) were removed from the dataset. Outliers above 3 SD above the mean were also removed. Additionally, data from just the right eye was used for analysis. Because the literature (e.g., Seijas, et al, 2007) supports significant symmetry in ocular dominance, choosing one eye allowed us to preserve fine-grain variations that may have been lost by averaging the size of both pupils at every time point.

While choosing a method for fractal analysis is nontrivial (Stergiou 2018), we took methodological precautions guided by Stergiou, et al, 2018 to determine DFA as the best method. Due to the length of the data, Stabilogram Diffusion Analysis (SDA) analysis was excluded as a candidate method. Visual inspection of Ss 33's data established that the data likely had fractal properties and met the necessary qualifications to be nonstationary fractional Brownian motion (fBm), as shown in Figure 1. These findings supported using detrended fluctuation analysis (DFA).

Figure 1: Time series data of Ss 33's right eye pupil diameter







Figure 3: Histogram of Alpha values by experience level





Discussion

This analysis unveiled many interesting findings worthy of further investigation. We hypothesized that the fractal properties of experienced pilots' pupil dilation/contraction would approach 1/f noise, where the pupil dilation/contraction patterns of inexperienced pilots would show a breakdown in fractal scaling, especially for more difficult tasks. Results were consistent with this hypothesis.

The literature supports that there is a link between pupil diameter and cognitive load, since pupil diameter is controlled in part by the autonomous nervous system. During cognitive tasks that demand increased mental effort, the diameter of the pupil tends to increase. This analysis further shows that it is evident that there are differences

Results

Due to computational and recording errors, 66 runs were excluded from analysis. DFA was performed on the remaining 354 runs. Participants in the low experience group (n = 214) had a mean Alpha of 1.16 (SD = 0.05), while participants in the high experience group (n = 140) had a mean Alpha of 1.15 (SD = 0.05). A Welch two-sample t-test was conducted to compare the mean Alpha values between the two groups. The results revealed a significant difference between the low experience group and the high experience group (t(301.84) = 3.13, p = .0019, 95% CI [0.006, 0.026]).

in the fractal scaling properties of experienced pilots' pupil size during flight tasks compared with inexperienced pilots.

Further analyses could unveil correlations between these findings and the pilots performance data. Regression models may reveal relationships between performance data and resulting statistics from nonlinear analysis of pupil dilation data.



Diagonal couplets in four-legged human gait to climb stepping-block using two poles

Yusuke Koshimizu¹), Akira Fukuhara²), Keiko Yokoyama³), Yuji Yamamoto⁴), Akifumi Kijima⁵)

- 1) Graduate School of Medicine, University of Yamanashi, Japan
- 2) Research Institute of Electrical Communication, Tohoku University, Japan
- 3) Research Center of Health, Physical Fitness and Sports, Nagoya University, Japan
- 4) Department of Psychological Sciences, Niigata University of Health and Welfare, Japan
- 5) Faculty of Education, University of Yamanashi, Japan

This research is supported by KAKENHI #20H00572, #20H04090

Background and objective Trekking poles can be functional limbs for mountain climbers in climbing steep slopes while carrying heavy loads. When using these two additional limbs while climbing, distinct patterns of coordination emerge among the four limbs—the two handheld poles, and the legs—depending on the step height. We hypothesized that such functional patterns of coordination have topological structures resembling some quadrupeds. To test this hypothesis, we referred to the classification model of the gait of various quadrupeds using **duty factor** and **diagonality.** (See: Fig. 1 for details.)

Method

- Participants: Ten right-handed males (Age: 20.09 ± 2.01 yrs., Height: 169.36 ± 10.02 cm).
- Task: Asked to climb a step (20 cm, 40 cm, or 60 cm) using both poles, one held in each hand. Participants were asked to perform the task with/without a 10 kg weight carried in a backpack.
- Independent measure: Step Height (20 cm, 40 cm, 60 cm) and Weight (0 kg or 10 kg). Five trials of each, were conducted for 6 levels.



Fig. 2: Step climbing task. At the start of the experiment, the moment when any of the four points are in contact with the ground.

Duty factor and diagonality calculation

A cycle of climbing action (*C*) was calculated as follows:

$$C = td - td$$

where, **to** denotes the time of the 2FEET, UN first limb to takeoff and **td** denotes the time of the last limb touchdown. Duty factor and diagonality were calculated by following equation. Duty factor = $\frac{C - (H_{td} - H_{to})}{C} \times 100$ Diagonality = $\frac{H_{td} - F_{td}}{C} \times 100$ as a and

 H_{to} and H_{td} denote the timing of the of the time in which hindfoot takeoff and touchdown of the hind touchdown precedes the forefoot takeoff relative to the store and a set of the time in which hindfoot touchdown precedes the forefoot takeoff relative to the store and a set of the set of



Fig. 3 : The definition of duty factor and diagonality was introduced by Hildebrand (1965). Duty factor is the duration of the stance phase of one foot calculated as a percentage of the gait cycle, and diagonality is the percentage of the time in which hindfoot touchdown precedes the forefoot takeoff relative to the step cycle. In this example, duty factor of left hind leg is 64% and diagonality of left limbs is 26%. Fig. 1: Classification of quadrupeds by duty factor and diagonality. Individual differences in each species can be explained by the difference in function of the ratio of the diagonality to the duty factor. e.g., primates: y = x, horses: y = 100 - x, camels: y = x - 100 etc.



Data analysis

- The number of gaits in the red range in Fig. 1 (i.e., duty factor > 50% and diagonality < 50%) were calculated and tested for significant difference using 3 Step-Heights x 2 Weights-Carried (ANOVA.) (Fig. 4).
- The gait in this range, seems to resemble the gait of four legged animals which is qualitatively different from that of primates.
 - Further tested for better data-function fit. (Fig. 5).
 - y = 100 x: Horses, Deer
 - y = x 100 : Camels

Results



Fig. 4: The percentage of the tasks where duty factor was greater than 50% and diagonality was less than 50% for each condition. * denotes significant difference between groups. The values were significantly higher in the 10 kg weight condition compared to the 0 kg (F(1, 9) = 7.367, p = 0.024).

Fig. 5: Individual differences among the trials in diagonality as a function of duty factor. Data (20 cm + 0 kg and 60 cm + 10 kg, for example) with duty factor greater than 50% were distributed along the function y = 100 -*x* similar to the difference among the species with relatively short legs with respect to trunk (i.e., horses).







Discussion

- Four-legged gaits with trekking poles are characterized by diagonality from 25% to 50%. They are labeled as "lateral sequence diagonal couplets" on the Hildebrand diagram (Hildebrand, 1976) cited by Cartmill (2002). This coordination pattern is identical to the feature of the gait pattern of animals with short legs relative to the length of the trunk (e.g., horses or deer).
- Human participants adopted a strategy of moving forward by shifting their own center of mass (CoM) forward when relying on poles, like the gait of horses that loads heavy weight onto the forelegs, qualitatively different from primates.
- This observation suggests that hikers effectively advance by propelling their own CoM forward and inhibiting unnecessary mediolateral variance of the CoM by using diagonal couplets, unlike the long-legged quadrupeds, such as, camels.



Four-legged human gait

Koshimizu et al

Against free energy, for direct perception Robert Heath & Thomas A. Stoffregen

School of Kinesiology UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA Driven to Discover*



Figure 1. Optic flow



Figure 2. The Global Array



Gibson (1966, 1979) claimed that perception is direct. In Gibson's conception, physical law dictates determinate relations between properties of physical reality (including higher order properties relating to biological and psychological systems) and patterns in ambient energy arrays. Gibson claimed that these determinate relations are unique (i.e., 1:1), such that physical reality is specified in patterns of ambient energy. Gibson argued that optic flow specifies self-motion (Figure 1). Others have argued that the necessary 1:1 specification exists solely in the Global Array (Figure 2).



Figure 3. Bounded systems

The Free Energy Principle (FEP) derives from 19th century physics. Friston has argued that the FEP is a foundational organizing principle in biophysics and cognitive science. The physics that underly the use of the FEP in the behavioral sciences mandate a categorical boundary between organism and environment (Figure 3). Information cannot cross the boundary, in either direction. Thus, Friston's FEP mandates that perception must be inferential (Figure 4). Under Friston's FEP, Gibson's arguments about lawful specification must be either physically incorrect, or simply irrelevant. That is, it is claimed that Friston's FEP takes precedence over any arguments about specification (e.g., Bruineberg et al., 2022).

The success of Friston's FEP depends, in part, on the underlying 19th century physics. Those physics require that time be mathematically modeled as being discrete, as in the "timeline", in which time is a linear quantity that can be divided into discrete, bounded units of arbitrary length (Figure 5). This conceptualization is common, but not universal. Bergson (1922) argued that the traditional discretization of time negates the essential nature of time as duration. Bergson argued that concepts of time in terms of discrete, bounded units cannot be correct. If Bergson is correct, then the FEP cannot be correct and, similarly, Friston's extension of it to the biological and psychological domains cannot be correct. It follows that there need not be a categorical boundary between organism and environment. Thus, Bergson's arguments can be understood as providing a fundamental basis for and justification of Gibson's claim that direct perception is based upon lawful specification.





Figure 5. The infinitely divisible timeline

Stoffregen, T., & Heath, R. (2022). Against free energy, for direct perception. Behavioral and Brain Sciences, 45, E212, 59-60.

AN ECOLOGICAL APPROACH TO MOLYNEUX'S PROBLEM

Lorena Lobo¹, Manuel Heras-Escribano², Carlos de Paz³ & David Travieso³

¹ Universidad a Distancia de Madrid, Spain, ² Universidad de Granada, Spain, ³ Universidad Autónoma de Madrid, Spain



Hypothesis. Hit rate:

- First trial: Participants would be unable to recognize figures "at first sight" above chance.
- Active vs. passive: Participants would have a learning effect only in the active condition.





Repetitions

Results of 4 participants of a pilot study intended to optimize the functioning of the device

Conclusions

The current design might solve the adaptation problem of the Molyneux problem.

Exploratory movement would inform on the relevant information for detecting the geometrical figures

References

Held, R., Ostrovsky, Y., de Gelder, B., Gandhi, T., Ganesh, S., Mathur, U., y Sinha, P. (2011). The newly sighted fail to match seen with felt. *Nature Neuroscience, 14*(5), 551-553.

Miller, G. (2011). Formerly blind children shed light on a centuries-old puzzle. Science Now, 10.



A Space differentiation occurs in 6-8 old-month infants: A new view of the Spatial Orientation Paradigm



Iván López-Ortiz, Alejandro León, & Varsovia Hernández-Eslava Comparative Psychology Lab, Universidad Veracruzana

Introduction

- One instance of differentiation of space (Gibson & Pick, 2000) is found in infant's spatial orientation, which is the ability to identify the fixed location of an event despite observer's movement in space (Acredolo, 1978).
- The evidence of such ability in pre-locomotor infants (6-8 months old) under visually homogeneous or heterogeneous environments is inconsistent (Acredolo, 1978; Acredolo & Evans, 1980; McKenzie et al, 1984; Rieser, 1979).
- The contradictory evidence may be due to the use of measures that only focus on "correct responses" and are not sensitive enough to capture small changes in the process of spatial differentiation.
- If differentiation imply, in addition of the specificity of response (Gibson & Gibson, 1955), the active process of detecting the permanent properties of the environment (Gibson & Pick, 2000), the analysis of this process may help us to resolve some controversies in the area.

Objective

• To analyze the process of differentiation of space of pre-locomotor infants, through the recording of moment-to-moment infant's activity, using a variation of the Spatial Orientation Paradigm (Acredolo, 1978) under a visually homogeneous or heterogeneous environment..

Method

Participants Six pre-locomotor infants between 6 and 8 months-old.

Figure 1



2.3 m

 Table 1

 Experimental design

 Group
 Exploration

 Training
 Test

 Homogeneous
 Design

Homogeneous	No overte	Sound Toy	Sound	
Heterogeneous	No events	Sound-Toy	Sound	

Note. 3 participants in each group. Heterogeneous environment: A yellow star frame around toy-window. Homogeneous environment: No yellow star frame.

Procedure

Exploration. Infant in exploration position for 5 min. Training. Infant in training position. 14 trials sound (5 s) followed by toy (10 s) in a fixed location.

Test. Infant in test position. 3 trials sound (5 s).

Figure 2

Infant's activity and events along Exploration, Training and Test.



Results

Note. One representative infant of each group is show. The upper panels (Exploration, Training and Test) correspond to Homogeneous group, the bottom panels correspond to Heterogeneous group.

- The activity continuously displayed by infants is differentially organized according to the differences in the environment (homogeneous vs. heterogeneous) and the presence or absence of relationships between events (exploration vs. training- test).
- Recording and analysis of the moment-to-moment infant's activity shows differences not captured by traditional records in the area, based on infants' correct and incorrect responses during test trials.
- Specifically, under heterogeneous environment infants display more inspection and comparison of the relevant locations and corrections of the direction of his responses (in test). This results permit us to affirm that infants under this condition exhibit spatial orientation, against Acredolo's (1978) report.
- This differences in the infant's activity correspond with different process of active detecting of the permanent properties of the environment, it is, distinct process of differentiation of space.

References and Contact



lván López Ortiz: psi.lopezortiz@gmail.com Alejandro León: aleleon@uv.mx (corresponding author) Varsovia Hernández-Eslava: arahernandez02@uv.mx

Juliette LOZANO-GOUPIL¹, Mathilde PARISI¹, Stéphane RAFFARD², Ludovic MARIN¹

¹ EuroMov Digital Health in Motion, Univ Montpellier, IMT Mines Alès, Montpellier, France.

² Laboratoire Epsylon Université Paul Valery Montpellier & Service Universitaire de Psychiatrie Adulte, CHU Montpellier, Montpellier, France



Moving with someone happy makes you happy

EuroMov

Digital Health in Motion

IMT Mines Alès

- While interacting with someone, we tend to mimic their emotional expressions and catch their emotions¹. This emotional contagion is socially beneficial by increasing liking, affiliation, empathy, and prosocial behavior².
- Quantifying the emotional body movements of individuals in interaction and their influence on their partner's movements and feelings could provide a better understanding of emotional contagion and open up avenues to possible ways of cognitive behavior therapies.



Objective:

To investigate emotional contagion (mimicry and feedback) of joy and sadness in dyads through changes in arm movements

METHODS



Individual Motor Signature change ION Neutral Mean Mean Effect congruent incongruent р size Index Index Sadness Neutral > Joy 0.0595 0.0472 < .05 0.35 Neutral > Sadness 0.0520 0.0397 < .05 0.53 Emotion change



- Ordinal Cumulative Link Mixed Model (CLMM): Time (1st vs. 2nd measures)
- As each IMS represents an idiosyncratic way of moving, we demonstrated that neutral members engaged in similar motor behaviors to their joyful and sad partner during the interaction.
- Changes in emotional feeling from a neutral state were not obvious to assess after a 5minute speechless interaction despite the evidence of emotional mimicry.
- Emotional mimicry and feedback are not automatically appreciated together during a body-engaging experimental study⁴.



- Condition (congruent vs. incongruent interaction)

1st measure 2nd measure

- 2nd measure
 - Significant increase in felt joy after the interaction with a joyful participant and also after the interaction with a neutral participant.
 - Significant decrease in felt sadness after the interaction with a neutral and a joyful participant.

- People can mimic emotional unidimensional arm movements in addition to face, voice, and posture, opening the field of possibilities in the study of emotional contagion.
- Our study is the first step in auantifying the emotional behavior of moving individuals during dyadic social interactions, leading to potential avenues of cognitive behavior therapies.

References

Hatfield E, Hatfield C, Cacioppo JT, Rapson RL. Emotional Contagion. Cambridge 499 University Press; 1994. 256 p. ²Chartrand TL, Lakin JL. The Antecedents and Consequences of Human Behavioral Mimicry. Annu Rev Psychol. 2013;64(1):285-308. ³Noy L, Dekel E, Alon U. The mirror game as a paradigm for studying the dynamics of 587 two people improvising motion together. Proc Natl Acad Sci. 27 déc 588 2011;108(52):20947-52. ⁴McIntosh DN. Spontaneous facial mimicry, liking and emotional contagion. Emot 509 Contag. 2006;37(1):31-42.

Contact

juliette.lozano-goupil@umontpellier.fr





Contribution of Variability in Joint Coordination During Novel Motor Learning

Anadi Mehta¹, Joanne Smith¹, David Travieso² & Raoul M. Bongers¹

1.Department of Human Movement Science, University Medical Center Groningen, University of Groningen, Netherlands

2. Universidad Autonoma de Madrid, Madrid, Spain



FRi

Experiment

Ball

Catching

Email: <u>a.mehta@umcg.nl</u> Twitter: @action_explorer

Introduction

Novel **motor learning** entails the **search** within **joint space** to find new **coordination patterns** in order to perform the task.

Search is characterized as systematic task specific changes in patterns over time [1]. The search for a new movement solution depends on the amount and structure of motor variability at the task level [2].

However, finding a new movement solution requires **variability** in the joint space to search and form joint coordination patterns that fit the task at hand.

Research Gap

Motor learning studies widely report benefits of practice variability as improvement in task performance. Limited studies have evaluated the underlying search processes at play during learning to find new coordination patterns.

Moreover, the variability of practice effect is primarily studied as pre – post designs and the focus has not been on the acquisition phase. Therefore, we examine the role of practice variability in the learning process at the joint level.

Research Question

Are there differences in the search for a new coordination pattern in arm joints between blocked and variable practice when learning a novel task?

Task Level Results

1. Is there a difference in change of end effector error over practice between blocked and variable group?



Fig 3. Change in error across learning phases. Faster learning in blocked practice as compared to variable.



Ph1 Ph2 Ph3 Ph4 Phase Fig 4. Difference in skewness of error distribution between groups indicate

Blocked

differences in learning strategies.
4 Fig 5. Error distribution

comparison between first and last phase of learning.

Representative plots for a single participant from blocked (PNo.2) and variable (PNo.1) group.

Dissimilarity between variable and blocked practice show different

Methods

Task: Virtual Lateral Interception

Groups: 1.Blocked (on arrival position) 2.Variable

Participants: 8 (4 per group)

No. of Trials: 480 trials (Feedback was provided on successful trials)



Starting Locations

Paddle

Ps

A **redundant mapping** of joint angles is used to control an avatar (paddle) on the screen (the red bar in the figure above).

FLi



P = Position of paddle

Mapping

P = Elb +

ScaY + ScaZ

Elb = Normalized left elbow flexion-extension angle ScaY = Normalized Protraction-Retraction of left scapula ScaZ = Normalized Rotation of left scapula

Calibration

Fig 2. Experimental Setup: The task is performed in virtual reality using signals from shoulder and elbow movement.

Joint Projection Analysis Results



Orthogonal projection and distance along UCM are parameters to track the changes in joint space with respect to the task goal.

They are used to quantify the search behavior.

Fig 7. Graphical representation of the projection analysis for joint configuration at interception

3. Do the joint configurations at interception locations differ between blocked and variable practice?



Fig 8. Orthogonal Projection at interception location. Reduction in orthogonal projection shows that all participants learn joint configurations that allow successful interception of the ball.

Fig 9. Distance along UCM at interception. High values in phase 4 implies differences in joint configuration even though task is performed successfully.

Variable group performs the task with more varied configurations than blocked as indicated by



Joint Level Results

2. Does the search over practice within joint space differ between blocked and variable practice?



Fig 6. Standard deviation of joint configuration at interception across learning phases. Higher standard deviation in all joints for variable practice indicates more search behavior in this group in comparison to blocked practice.



This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under the Marie Skłodowska-Curie grant agreement No 956003

Discussion

higher standard deviation even in the last phase of learning.

- Participants learn to co-ordinate their movements through practice and learn to perform the task irrespective of practice schedule. However, there are distinct learning patterns between blocked and variable practice.
- Despite the low error in most part of the practice, participants still explore coordination patterns within the solution space.
- Participants in variable practice search more than the blocked practice group within the joint space across all phases.
- In later phases of practice, the variable group continues to explore more within the solution space.

References

- Pacheco, M. M., Lafe, C. W., & Newell, K. M. (2019). Search strategies in the perceptual-motor workspace and the acquisition of coordination, control, and skill. Frontiers in Psychology, 10, 1874
- Ranganathan, R., Lin, M., Carey, S., Lokesh, R., Lee, M. H., & Krishnan, C. (2021). Motor Variability Prior to Learning does not Facilitate the Ability to Adopt new Movement Solutions. Neuroscience, 479, 157-168.



Response-force Requirements on Food-maintained Responding in Rats

Denisse Ochoa, Ángel Jiménez

Universidad de Guadalajara

BACKGROUND

Response force is a fundamental dimension of behavior. Yet, little is known about its significance for learning. Research shows that conditioned behavior decreases in frequency with increasing response force requirements in different species, such as rats pressing a lever (Notterman & Mintz, 1965), pigeons pecking a key (Chung, 1965), and mice pressing a disk with the snout (Zarcone et al., 2007). These findings have been interpreted as increasing force requirements being aversive. Overall, these works suggest that the simple regression model can describe this relation:

$$Y = \alpha + \beta \cdot X,\tag{1}$$

where Y are response rates, X are force requirements, and parameters α and β are the intercept and slope of the regression line, respectively.

However, studies that measured criterion force and subcriterion force responses in operant tasks with different response force requirements (Pinkston & Moore, 2020; Zarcone et al., 2009), found that higher force requirements increased total response emission (i.e., the sum of criterion and subcriterion responses), which is not consistent with the punishment hypothesis.

The present work evaluated these findings from an ecological (i.e., Gibsonian) perspective, manipulating force requirements not from an extrinsic metric, but in intrinsic terms. That is, from the animal's biomechanical properties.

A second aim was to explore a different model than the linear to describe the relationship between biomechanical properties and operant learning performance. This is important if empirical evidence that measured subcriterion responses suggests that high force response requirements are not aversive. The model assessed whether describes in a more precise way this relation was the simple binomial logistic regression:

$$logit(Y) = ln\left[\frac{\pi}{1-\pi}\right] = \alpha + \beta \cdot X.$$
(2)

Taking the antilog of Eq. 2 on both sides, derives an equation to predict the probability of the occurrence of criterion responses as follows:

$$\pi = \frac{e^{\alpha + \beta \cdot X}}{1 + e^{\alpha + \beta \cdot X}},\tag{3}$$

where π is the probability of criterion responses, α is the Y intercept, β is the regression coefficient, e = 2.71828 is the base of the system of natural logarithms, and X is the force requirement.

Subjects

METHOD

Six male Wistar rats maintained at 85% of their free-feeding body weights. Rats were housed individually in polycarbonate cages with free access to water in a temperature-controlled colony room on a 12:12 h light/dark cycle.

Aparattus



Procedure

Before the beginning of the experiment, rat's grip strength was measured using a dynamometer for rodents (Bioseb, model GT3, Vitrolles, France).

Rats obtained food pellets by lever pressing according to a fixed-ratio 1 schedule of reinforcement. Experimental sessions were conducted at the same time daily and lasted until the delivery of 49 food pellets or the elapsing of 30 minutes, whichever occurred first.

In conditions that lasted 5 sessions each, lever force (mass) requirement for food delivery was increased in intrinsic metric (i.e., according to a percentage of each rat's grip strength, see Table 1).

Table 1. Experimental design.

				1.001	1001
Block 1	1.5%	3%	6%	9%	12%



 Table 2. Results of simple binomial regression analysis.

Rat	Inter- cept	Force	Devian- ce	AIC	Likeli- hood ratio	Wald Z	Nagel- kerke R ²	С	D _{xy}	Gamma
S1	1.66***	-0.32***	Null > residual	758.62	<0.0001	<0.0001	0.26	0.77	0.55	0.65
S2	3.47***	-0.58***	Null > residual	415.82	<0.0001	<0.0001	0.51	0.89	0.78	0.87
S3	2.35***	-0.36***	Null > residual	672.35	<0.0001	<0.0001	0.31	0.79	0.57	0.67
S4	2.70***	-0.25***	Null > residual	548.65	<0.0001	<0.0001	0.18	0.71	0.42	0.51
S5	0.30	-0.13***	Null > residual	891.71	<0.0001	<0.0001	0.05	0.62	0.24	0.30
S6	0.65**	-0.18***	Null > residual	1028.4	<0.0001	<0.0001	0.10	0.68	0.35	0.43
* n <	0 05 ** 1	2 < 0.01	*** p < 0.0	01						



BIOCK 2	3%	6%	9%	10%	13%

CONCLUSIONS

- 1. Criterion lever-press rates decreased with increasing lever force requirements. The linear regression model (Eq. 1) described the data well.
- 2. Linear regression lines showed that total lever-press rates tended to remain constant (slopes close to 0) across lever force requirements. This result contradicts a punishment interpretation of criterion response decrements and suggest that higher force requirements are more analogous to intermittent schedules of reinforcement.
- 3. The simple binomial logistic regression model (Eq. 3) showed that the likelihood of emission of force criterion responses decreased with increasing force requirements.
- 4. The sigmoidal relationship predicted by the binomial logistic model between lever press rates and lever force requirements suggests that linearity is not the case over the full range of lever force requirements.
- 5. These findings indicate that preorganized properties of behavior (the organism's biomechanical abilities) present before operant conditioning takes place, contribute to modulate instrumentally conditioned behavior.

Role of Emotion on Potential Affordance Detection in Different Environments



Environment

Alexa Ott and Kerry L. Marsh, Department of Psychological Sciences, University of Connecticut

Introduction

- Positive emotional states are 0 theorized to create a broadening effect, captured as the expansiveness of one's cognitions, actions, and perceptions (Fredrickson & Branigan, 2005)
- Little is known about how an 0 individual's current affective state influences responsiveness to an environment
 - In other words, could the 0 "broadening effect" lead to more sensitivity to detecting action possibilities (i.e., affordances; Gibson, 1979)?
- Explore whether the type of 0 environment matters
- Natural versus built environments? 0 (Brymer et al., 2020)
- Public versus own territory? (Meagher, 0 2020)

Results

Experiment 1

ANOVA: Video (Positive, Negative, Neutral) X Environment (Downtown, Park, Apartment, House)

- No main or interactive effects of video on the total number of thoughts generated (Figure 1)
- Planned contrast examining outdoor environments (+1 +1) versus indoor environments differed (-1 -1) was **significant** *F*(1, 286) = 3.981, p < 0.05
 - o More thoughts listed for indoor environments (M = 12.92, SD= 0.46) than outdoor environments (M = 11.63, SD = 0.46)
- Main effect of environment on number of social action urges (i.e., activities listed involving others; Figure 2)
 - Reported more action urges in outdoor versus indoor environments
- Main effect of video on complexity (i.e., number of compounds listed) • Positive video significantly differed from negative and neutral conditions

Experiment 2

ANOVA: Video (Positive, Negative) X Environment (Downtown, House)

No main or interactive effects of IVs

Predictions

H1:Positive affective states will sensitize individuals to their environment, leading them to list more total activities that they could do in an environment.

H2: Those who imagine themselves navigating outdoor environments will generate larger and more socially-oriented lists than those assigned to indoor environments (Brymer et al., 2020; Jäger & Rüsseler, 2016), or the opposite will occur (see the territoriality hypothesis; Meagher, 2020) because private spaces provide more hosting-relevant affordances.

Method

- Video stimuli pretested in pilot study, confirming effectiveness of video manipulation
- Experimental designs conceptually replicate Fredrickson and Branigan (2005)

Experiment 1

- Between-subjects design; N = 298 (194 women)
- o Randomly viewed one video (i.e., evoking a positive, negative, or neutral emotion state)
- Imagined being transported to one of four possible depicted environments
- Asked to indicate what activities they could do 0 there by completing the prompt "I could..." up to 20 times

Experiment 2

- Between-subjects design; N = 203 (147 women)
- o Randomly assigned to view a short video (i.e., positive or negative
- Imagined being transported to one of two possible depicted environments (indoor v. outdoor, see asterisks)
- Asked to complete the prompt "I could..."



Figure 1: Contrary to H1, no main effect of video on total number of activities listed in Experiment 1.



Figure 2: In Experiment 1, those who were transported to the apartment environment listed significantly fewer social action urges



House (indoor/private)

Then answer: *I could ...* prompts ent 1 and Experiment 2

Discussion

Experiment 1

- Results did not support Hypothesis 1
- Regarding Hypothesis 2, initial evidence for territoriality perspective (Meagher, 2020)
- o More "social action urges" reported in outdoor environments, however, people were depicted in the images—a confound removed in Experiment 2.
- 0 Total number of activities evoked by indoor environments were greater
 - Contrary to Jäger and Rüsseler (2016), there was no difference in "social action urges" due to video conditions

Experiment 2

- Environment effects of Experiment 1 were not replicated.
- Once confound was removed, the results provided clearer
- support for the territoriality hypothesis (Meagher, 2020). • As in Experiment 1, no support was found for the affordance extension of the "broadening" effect, despite using affect manipulations similar to past research (Fredrickson & Branigan, 2005)

Limitations

• Static images (with some dynamic change, i.e., "zooming in") were used instead of environments, a significant methodological flaw (Heft, 2007). Examining people's sensitivity to actual affordances will necessitate them being embedded in the actual environments.

- on the total number of thoughts generated nor on complexity
- Main effect of environment on number of social action urges (Figure 3)
 - More social items listed for indoor (M = 2.56, SD = 2.07) versus outdoor environment (M = 1.37, SD = 1.64)

Additional Linguistic Analysis

LIWC: (Tausczik & Pennebaker, 2010)

 Conducted analyses of social, actions (i.e., verbs), and perception content



Figure 3: In Experiment 2, we found those transported to an indoor environment listed significantly more social action urges

In sum, the findings illuminate interesting possibilities for examining the salience of potential affordances in different environments, but no support for broadening hypothesis.

References

Brymer, E., Araújo, D., Davids, K., & Pepping, G. J. (2020). Conceptualizing the human health outcomes of acting in natural environments: an ecological perspective. Frontiers in Psychology, 11, 1362. Fredrickson, B. L., & Branigan, C. (2005). Positive emotions broaden the scope of attention and thought-action

repertoires. Cognition & Emotion, 19(3), 313-332.

Gibson, J. J. (1979). The ecological approach to visual perception: Boston: Houghton Mifflin

Heft, H. (2007). The social constitution of perceiver-environment reciprocity. Ecological Psychology, 19(2), 85-

Jäger, D. T., & Rüsseler, J. (2016), Low arousing positive affect broadens visual attention and alters the thoughtpadened visual attention does not. Frontiers in Psychology, 7, 1652. re while hr

Meagher, B. R. (2020). Ecologizing social psychology: The physical environment as a necessary cor social processes. *Personality and Social Psychology Review*, 24(1), 3-23.

Tausczik, Y. R., & Pennebaker, J. W. (2010). The psychological meaning of words: LIWC and computerized text nalysis methods. Journal of Language and Social Psychology. 29(1), 24-54.

The Effect of Ambient Lighting Conditions on Affordance Perception

Tyler Overstreet Alen Hajnal

THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN MISSISSIPPI.

INTRODUCTION:

- The presence of a flat surface at a steep angle in front of an observer during quiet stance stabilizes posture and increases movement complexity (Hajnal et al., 2014)
 - What is the influence of light intensity?
- Present Study
 - Manipulated light (Low, Mid, High)
 - Manipulated angle (0° 90° in 15-degree increments)
 - Affordance task: "Can you stand on presented angle?"

HYPOTHESES:

- H1: The action boundary in the low condition should be < 30 degrees
- H2: The action boundary in the low condition will be lower than in the mid and high conditions
- H3: Reaction time should be slower in the low condition compared to the high and mid conditions
- H4: Body movements should be higher in the low condition compared to the high and mid conditions
- H5: Light intensity and body movements should interact and predict affordance judgments

METHODS (n = 31):

- "Can you stand on the ramp at the presented angle?"
 - Yes/No responses

"Light intensity

influences the affordance perception of stand-on-ability"





B: Mesopic **C:** Scotopic





RESULTS:

- Perceptual judgements transition from yes to no as the angle increases from 0 to 90
- Answers were more conservative in the lowest light condition (H1 & H2 confirmed)
- Response time is longest at the transition point (~30) and in the **highest** light condition (**H3 not confirmed**)

Affordance Response





DISCUSSION:

- Upcoming analyses
- How is postural sway influenced by lighting conditions
- Compare sway measurements between head and feet
- Limitations
- •VR Hardware
- Future Studies

- Response time
- Head movements (Mean, CV, ETC)
- Center of Pressure

Contact: t.overstreet@usm.edu

References:

Hajnal, A., Rumble, D., Shelley-Tremblay, J. F., & Liu, W. (2014). Optical push by geographical slant affects postural sway. *Ecological Psychology*, *26*(4), 283–300. https://doi.org/10.1080/ 10407413.2014.957999

Hajnal, A., Surber, T., Overstreet, T., Masoner, H., Dowell, C., Funkhouser, A., Shelley-Tremblay, J., & Samu, K. (2022) Complex Postural Sway is Related to Perception of Stand-on-Ability, *Ecological Psychology*, *34*(1-2), 1-18, DOI: 10.1080/10407413.2022.2035225 • Compare with real world equivalent

- Population Comparisons
 - •Old vs Young
 - Athletes vs Nonathletes
- Motor control deficiencies



Cross Recurrence Quantification analysis of a ball retrieval task in Virtual Reality

Balagopal Raveendranath, Roshan Venkatakrishnan, Rohith Venkatakrishnan, Christopher C. Pagano & Sabarish Babu Clemson University, USA





Figure 5. a) Sample cross recurrence plot and DTC time series for a successful, low frequency door oscillation trial for controller end-effector; b) Sample plot for a failed, low frequency door oscillation trial for controller end-effector.

diagonal line length line length

Discussion

- As the door frequency increased, the coupling between the hand and the doors reduced significantly.
- The rate of reduction in coupling was higher for participants who saw the glove-yoked virtual hand as the end-effector.

References

 Lee, D. N., Georgopoulos, A. P., Clark, M. J., Craig, C. M., & Port, N. (2001). Guiding contact by coupling the taus of gaps. Experimental Brain Research, 139, 151-159.

 Venkatakrishnan, R., Venkatakrishnan, R., Raveendranath, B., Pagano, C.C., Robb, A.C., Lin, W.-C., & Babu, S.V. (2023). How Endeffector Representations Affect the Perceptions of Dynamic Affordances in Virtual Reality. *IEEE Transactions on Visualization* and Computer Graphics, 29, 2258-2268.

Effects of active-passive exploration and surface layout stability on haptic perception

Aurelio M. Rodríguez and Pablo Covarrubias

Center for Research in Comparative Cognition and Behavior, University of Guadalajara, Mexico

Introduction

Research on active-passive touch has shown that perceivers who actively explore the environment detect information more accurately than those who explore it but in a passive way (Held, 1965). These studies have been performed under experimental settings in which the surface layout is stable. Little is known however about the effects of active-passive exploration on haptic perception when the surface layout is non-stable. In this study, we assessed the role of surface stability on detection of information by means of active and passive tactile exploration.

Method

- For Experiments 1 and 2:
- Forty cards made of paper (15 cm x 15 cm) were used.
- Subjects were exposed to four marbles arranged as a square.
- They had to detect whether left marbles were horizontally or diagonally related to
- right marbles. At the middle of the session the relationship was reversed and subjects had to detect the novel relation.

Experiment 1

- Twenty four college students (83% women; M= 19.1 year-old, SD= 0.48) participated.
- In Phase 1 some subjects were exposed to horizontal relationships and others to diagonal relations.
- Some participants moved their hand freely (active explorers) and others their hands were moved by the experimenter (passive explores) reproducing the same movements performed by active explorers.
- In Phase 2 the relation between stimuli (marbles) was reversed and all participants (active and passive explores) were allowed to explore actively.

Design of Experiment 1



Results of Experiment 1



Comparing performance before and after the relationship reversal:

- In the horizontal-diagonal relationship (top panels):

For passive-active exploration, proportion of hits significantly decreased t(df=119)=8.91, p=.000, and proportion of variations significantly increased t(df=119)=8.91, p=.000, and proportion of variations significantly increased to the test of the test of the test of the test of test =227)=-3.92, p=.000. Non-significant differences were found for active-active exploration in neither of these two measures.

- In the diagonal-horizontal relationship (bottom panels):

Non-significant differences were found for passive-active exploration nor for active-active exploration in neither of the two measures (hits and variations).

Conclusions

- Under a stable surface layout (Exp. 1), passive-active explorers showed less hits and more variations when they had to detect the change in relation from horizontal to diagonal than active-active explorers. These results suggest that passive-active explorers were less able to detect novel relations than active-active explorers, which is consistent with what has been reported by Held and Hein (1963).



Experiment 2

- Sixteen college students (82% women; M= 20.4 year-old, SD= 2.95) participated.
- In Phase 1, in half of the trials, stimuli (marbles) had a horizontal relationship and in ٠ the other half they had a diagonal relation. Trials were presented in a random order, simulating a non-stable surface layout.
- Active and passive explorers were exposed to this condition before moving on to the second phase.
- In Phase 2, all trials were based on a horizontal or diagonal relationship. In this phase, all participants explored actively.

Design of Experiment 2

0						
	Phase 1		Phase 2			
Group	Probability	Exploration	Probability	Exploration	Relationship	
1 (n=4)		Astiva			Horizontal	
2 (n=4)	P=0.5	Active	Active		Active	Diagonal
3 (n=4)		Dession	P=1.0	neuve	Horizontal	
$\frac{4}{(n=4)}$		rassive			Diagonal	

Results of Experiment 2



Comparing performance before and after the change of probability:

- In P= 0.5–1.0, horizontal relationship:

For passive-active exploration, proportion of hits significantly increased t(df =80)=-2.41, p=.018, and proportion of variations significantly decreased t(df=75)=2.70, p=.009. Non-significant differences were found for active-active exploration.

- In P= 0.5–1.0, diagonal relationship:

For passive exploration, proportion of hits significantly increased t(df=79)=-4.18, p=.000 and proportion of variation significantly decreased t(df=75)=3.55, p=.001. Non-significant differences were found for active-active exploration.





- On the contrary, under a non-stable and then a stable surface layout (Exp. 2), we found opposite effects. That is, passive-active explorers showed more hits and less variations when they detected the novel relation (horizontal and diagonal) than active-active explorers.
- These findings are consistent with Gibson's (1966) assertion that: "An individual who explores... detects the permanent layout... isolates the information for permanence" (p. 264). Apparently, in active exploration individuals are more able to detect novel relations if the change in stimuli relations occurs in a context of a stable environment (Exp. 1). However, if detection of novel relations in a stable environment is made after being exposed to a non-stable environment, those who benefit are passive-active explorers (Exp. 2).
- Our results are also consistent with experiments reported by Held (1965), who emphasizes the role of sensory-motor couplings in perception. According to him, sensory-motor couplings are possible given that the environment is stable.

References

Held, R. & Hein, A. (1963).Movement-Produced Stimulation in the Development of Visually Guided Behavior, Journal of Comparative and Physiological Psychology 56 (5), 872-76 Gibson, J. J. (1966). The senses considered as perceptual systems. Houghton Mifflin.



How Affordances Affect Choice in an Environment with Variable Food Distribution?

Dil Romero, Xavier Aragón, Indira Bautista, Ángel Jiménez

Universidad de Guadalajara

Research on choice behavior has shown that behavior allocation in two concurrent schedules is determined by characteristics of the reinforcing stimuli (i.e., food) that are contingent on responding such as their rate (e.g., Herrnstein, 1961). Different studies have manipulated food allocation and observed the resulting changes in response allocation with the following model:

$$\log\left(\frac{B_1}{B_2}\right) = S_R \cdot \log\left(\frac{R_1}{R_2}\right) + \log b,\tag{1}$$

where B_1 and B_2 are behavior allocations, measured in responses to alternatives 1 and 2, R_1 and R_2 are food rates obtained from alternatives 1 and 2, *b* is a measure of bias towards one alternative arising from factors other than food ratios, and S_R is sensitivity of behavior ratio to food ratio (Baum, 1974).

Choice behavior is also affected by affordance detection (Gibson, 1979), which results in the selection of actions according with the animal's abilities given by his own dimensional properties. As a result, if two alternatives furnish opportunities to obtain the same consequence (i.e., access to food), an animal will choose the alternative that better matches his own structure and capabilities. Former research show that rats' operant performance improves when response levers approximate to forepaw height (Jiménez et al., 2017), and that affordances offered by two levers with different heights organize lever pressing distribution (Jiménez et al., 2019).

Affordances are not only characterized by the animal's dimensions, but by the relation between the animal's biomechanical properties and the environment's surfaces force requirements (Cesari & Newell, 2000; Choi & Mark, 2004).

What happens when the choice alternatives differ in two dimensions: food distribution and force requirements to obtain food? Baum and Rachlin (1969) proposed that animals allocate behavior between two alternatives according to the relative value obtained, such that the ratio of behavior allocated between two activities equals the ratio of the values of the activities. Thus, generalizing this idea gives us the following equation:

$$\log\left(\frac{B_1}{B_2}\right) = S_R \cdot \log\left(\frac{R_1}{R_2}\right) + S_F \cdot \log\left(\frac{F_1}{F_2}\right) + \log b,\tag{2}$$

where B_1 and B_2 are behavior allocations, R_1 and R_2 are obtained food rates, F_1 and F_2 are the forces (masses) required by levers 1 and 2 to deliver food, *b* is a measure of bias towards one alternative arising from factors other than food and force ratios, S_R is sensitivity of behavior ratio to food ratio, and S_F is sensitivity of behavior ratio to lever force ratio (Hunter & Davison, 1982).

Accordingly, one aim of this experiment was to assess in rats how affordances provided by different lever forces (masses) affect choice in a situation where food allocation changed constantly and unpredictably.

A second goal was to test whether the multiple linear regression (Eq. 2) provides an adequate model for describing behavior distribution in two alternatives.

METHOD

Subjects

Six male Wistar rats maintained at 85% of their free-feeding body weights. Rats were housed individually in polycarbonate cages with free access to water in a temperature-controlled colony room on a 12:12 h light/dark cycle.

<u>Aparattus</u>

Procedure



Rats obtained food pellets by lever pressing, the experimental situation arranged seven different food ratios or components within the session. Components were presented randomly, without replacement neither signaling. Across components, food was delivered according to different pairs of concurrent variable interval (VI) – VI schedules of reinforcement (see Table 1), a 2-s changeover delay (Herrnstein, 1961) separated both VI concurrent schedules.

Table 1. Experimental situation.

	VI in left (s)	VI in right (s)
Comp. 1	12	108
Comp 2	12	36

Table 2. Design.

Rats 1, 2	2, and 3	Rats 4, 5	, and 6
Left lever	Right lever	Left lever	Right lever
3%	3%	3%	3%
3%	6%	6%	3%
9%	3%	3%	9%
3%	12%	12%	3%

RESULTS

Table 3. Sensitivity coefficients of the regression of **log criterion response allocation** on log food ratios (Eq. 1) across the different force ratios assessed. Log criterion responses only include lever presses with force equal or above force threshold.

Log (L/R) force ratio	M01	M02	M03	M04	M05	M06	Mean
0	0.16	0.37	0.21	0.53	0.26	0.09	0.27
0.3	0.22	0.62	0.22	1.35	0.64	0.16	0.53
0.47	0.94	1.18	0.28		0.19	1.36	0.79
0.6	1.37	0.83	1.52		1.05	0.88	1.13

Table 4. Results of regressing **log criterion response allocation** on log food and force ratios (Eq. 2). Sensitivity coefficients for food and force are the unstandardized weights obtained prior to the addition of the interaction term. R_{inc}^2 refers to the increment in R^2 when the interaction value was applied.

Rat	Food	Force	Intercept	R ²	Interaction	R ² inc
M01	0.74***	-1.49***	-0.11	0.83	-0.54**	0.01
M02	0.78***	-1.70***	-0.14***	0.93	0.28*	0.00
M03	0.77***	-0.90***	0.08	0.59	-1.18***	0.10
M04	1.03***	-3.24***	0.45**	0.80	2.72**	0.04
M05	0.58***	-1.20***	-0.13**	0.73	0.87***	0.07
M06	0.86***	-1.82***	0.07	0.88	-0.02	0.00
Mean	0.79	-1.72	0.04	0.79	0.35	0.03

* *p* < 0.05, ** *p* < 0.01, *** *p* < 0.001

Table 5. Results of regressing log overall response allocation on log food and force ratios (Eq. 2). Log overall responses include lever presses above and below force threshold.

Rat	Food	Force	Intercept	R^2	Interaction	R^{2}_{inc}
M01	0.61***	-0.64**	0.01	0.62	-0.41*	0.02
M02	0.70***	-0.89***	-0.02	0.73	-0.23	0.00
M03	0.38***	-0.15	-0.03	0.47	-0.23	0.01
M04	0.69***	-2.35**	0.41	0.65	1.50	0.01
M05	0.39***	-0.14	0.05	0.58	0.47***	0.09
M06	0.21***	-0.26*	0.14	0.69	-0.12**	0.02
Mean	0.50	-0.74	0.09	0.62	0.16	0.02

* *p* < 0.05, ** *p* < 0.01, *** *p* < 0.001

CONCLUSIONS

- 1. Sensitivity (i.e., slopes) to food-ratio variations was positive. That is, subjects preferred the richer lever adjusting to the rapid changes within sessions in food distribution.
- Sensitivity to food-rate ratios increased with increasing asymmetrically lever-force requirements.
- 3. For results of Eq. 2, response distribution changes were of lesser magnitude than changes in food ratios (slopes below 1.0).
- Sensitivity to force-ratio variations was negative, indicating that across conditions subjects preferred the lower force lever.
 - Ear criterian response ratios force clanes were steeper than feed clanes which

12	24
15	15
24	12
36	12
108	12
	12 15 24 36 108

Each component lasted until the delivery of 8 food pellets, components were separated from one another by a 10-s blackout during which the chamber lights were extinguished and lever presses had no effect. Experimental sessions were conducted at the same time daily and lasted until the seven components were completed (56 food pellets were obtained) or the elapsing of 30 minutes, whichever occurred first.

Before the beginning of the experiment, rat's grip strength was measured using a dynamometer for rodents (Bioseb, model GT3, Vitrolles, France). In 4 conditions that lasted 15 sessions each, levers force (mass) requirement for food delivery was varied in intrinsic metric (i.e., according to each rat's grip strength, see Table 2).

- For criterion response ratios, force slopes were steeper than food slopes, which suggest a larger control by force ratios than by food ratios. However, this finding is not supported with overall response ratios.
- 6. The model of multiple linear regression (Eq. 2) described the data better when criterion response ratios were introduced in the equation as the outcome variable than when overall response ratios were used as the outcome.
- 7. For most subjects, increments in *R*² values were negligible when adding to Eq. 2 the interaction term.
- Across subjects, bias (i.e., the intercept) was close to zero (except for rat 4), which indicates that choice behavior was controlled by food and force ratios and not by other variables.
- 9. These results suggest that Eq. 2 that assumes the concatenation of choice-affecting variables (Baum & Rachlin, 1969) describes the data well. Such a model implies that food ratio and lever force requirement ratio have independent multiplicative effects on choice.



Does Upper-limb Exoskeleton Affect Pointing Accuracy?



Elenah B. Rosopa, Balagopal Raveendranath, Christopher C. Pagano, and Divya Srinivasan Clemson University, USA

Introduction

- Exoskeletons are wearable devices that support or augment users' physical abilities by reducing the physical demands of repetitive tasks involving the use of heavy tools, etc.¹
- Upper-limb exoskeletons support the back and arms and are commonly used in industry for occupational tasks, primarily overhead work.²
- Users can improve their performance through attunement, calibration, and exploration.³
- The purpose of the study was to assess the effect of an exoskeleton on accuracy at a blind-pointing task.



Hypotheses:

- 1) Wearing an exoskeleton will decrease accuracy on a blind-pointing task.
- 2) Accuracy on a blind-pointing task will improve from pre-test to post-test, due to repeated calibration.

Methods

- N = 17 college students (9 Females, Age M = 20.76, SD = 4.80)
- Task: Start with hand at the side, follow a 40 BPM metronome to point six times alternating between two target points placed either on a vertical or horizontal line
- 3 phases: pre-test, calibration, post-test (8 trials per phase)
- Exploratory variables: Direction (vertical/horizontal); Movement (extension/flexion)
- · Motion tracking data was collected via Qualisys motion capture system





Figure 2. Flowchart depicting the research design.

Figure 3. On each trial, participants made vertical or horizontal reaches between two points on the poster



- Due to the repeated-measures design, variables had considerable nesting that produced multiple levels of variance.
- To account for this, Hierarchical Linear Modeling was used to assess the effects of condition, phase, direction, and movement on accuracy. Participant ID was included as the random effect.
- Accuracy, the dependent variable, was determined by the distance between the actual target point and the touched target point.



Table 1. Results of the omnibus F test predicting accuracy.







Figure 5. Plot showing the main effect of direction.

Ē 105

Figure 6. Plot showing the main effect of movement





Discussion

Condition, direction, and movement were significant predictors of accuracy.

- Less accurate when wearing an exoskeleton
- · Less accurate when pointing along a horizontal line
- · Less accurate during an extension movement

Though there was no difference between pre-test and post-test, there was an

Wearing an exoskeleton decreased accuracy on the blind-pointing task.

Horizontal–Flexion: M = 96.27

Accuracy tends to decrease when performing tasks that are farther away from the body.

Future research will examine how including a weight can impact pointing accuracy when wearing an exoskeleton. Additionally, future work should consider varying the nature of the task as well as including a sample representative of the population of likely users in terms of age, occupation, etc.

interaction between condition and phase.

- Accuracy was higher <u>without</u> the exoskeleton during the pre-test phase
- No difference in the post-test phase

The interaction effect between direction and movement suggests that accuracy is lower when pointing away from the body.

- · Accuracy was lower when extending to point along a horizontal line
- No difference between movements when pointing along a vertical line

References

- 1. Zhou, X., & Zheng, L. (2021). Model-based comparison of passive and active assistance designs in an occupational upper limb exoskeleton for overhead lifting. IISE transactions on occupational ergonomics and human factors, 9(3-4), 167-185.
- 2. McFarland, T., & Fischer, S. (2019). Considerations for industrial use: a systematic review of the impact of active and passive upper limb exoskeletons on physical exposures. IISE Transactions on Occupational Ergonomics and Human Factors, 7(3-4), 322-347
- 3. Wagman, J. B., Shockley, K., Riley, M. A., & Turvey, M. T. (2001). Attunement, calibration, and exploration in fast haptic perceptual learning. Journal of Motor Behavior, 33(4), 323-327.
- 4. Ekso Bionics. (2023). Ekso EVO Ekso Bionics. Ekso Bionics. https://eksobionics.com/ekso-evo/.

Travel support was provided by the Clemson Human Factors Institute



Active patterns in relationship perception: a modified transposition task with multidimensional stimuli

C)



Joao Santibáñez, Alejandro León, Varsovia Hernández, Isiris Guzmán & Esteban Escamilla Universidad Veracruzana

Introduction • In standard transposition task (STT), relationship perception (RP) has been studied training subjects to respond to one stimulus of a pair according to a multidimensional relational criterion involving two relevant dimensions: "bigger and darker than" (Andrade et al., 2020; Reese, 1968).

- Under STT, correct responses and latencies are the only evidence to focus on, leading to mediational explanations of RP (e.g., abstraction process; Okamoto & Okuno, 1958). This perspective has been criticized for its simple stimuli array and because it neglects other factors like the role of behavioral active patterns (Andrade et al., 2020).
- · Recently, León et al. (2021) found that in a multidimensional array with irrelevant dimensions (e.g., form, color) and a relevant one (e.g., size), mouse inspection over the screen was crucial to respond correctly. This pointed out the importance of spatial dimension of RP through inspection patterns and expanded the research scope with other possibilities of study how RP establishes.
- In order to further characterize the spatial dimension of RP, traveled distance and straightness index could be an adequate quantitative measures of it.

Objective

• In line with the above, the present work analyze active patterns in RP establishment when space is a relevant dimension under a multidimensional array in a modified transposition task based on Lazareva et al. (2018).

Method **Participants Experimental setting** 14 human adults between 22 and 28 · One session per day was performed via years old remote control (using Chrome Desktop Remote). · Experimental task was designed on Python and included mouse-tracking (5 fps).

Table 1.

Experimental design.

Group	Training/Test
Distance-Size	Farther and bigger than
Distance-Saturation	Farther and darker than

Note. Groups were conformed by 7 subjects each. For both groups training consisted in 6 sessions of 18 corrective trials each (maximum of 5) with feedback and test consisted of a single session of 18 non-corrective trials without feedback.

Figure 1.

Stimuli continuum and examples of trials for each group.

a)





b) **Distance-Size**





Next trial













Distance Straightness Index : Length

Note. a) Percentages of correct responses in test, b) mean latencies (sec), c) mean required trials to respond correctly, d) mean traveled distance (pxs) and e) mean straightness index and its illustration of how is calculated. For all plots, the error bars show standard error.

Conclussions

- The present task allows the study of RP establishment in a multidimensional stimuli array with two relevant dimensions where space is one of them.
- · It was more difficult to identify correct stimuli with saturation as a relevant dimension than with size. This is consistent with findings in the area with STT (Jackson, 1939) and with a modified transposition task (León et al., 2021) in which RP establishment is more hindered with saturation as a relevant dimension than with size (Andrade et al., 2020, Jackson, 1939).
- · The present study shows that traveled distance and straightness index are adequate measures to analyze and characterize directionality quality of active patterns.
- The differences in active patterns show that RP establishment was different between groups and provide evidence that active patterns are crucial for perceiving relations (i.e., RP is directly link to action).

References

A., & Hernández,

C)



Feedback

Note. a) Stimuli continuum employed, b) examples of trials for each group and c) sequence of events during training.

- n León Tarea de transp Una revisión metodológica y empírica. Acta Comportamentalia: Revista Latina de Análisis del Comportamiento, 28(4) http://revistas.unam.mx/index.php/acom/article/view/77329
- Jackson, T. (1939). Studies in the transposition of learning by children: III. Transpositional response as a function transposed dimensions. Journal of Experimental Psychology, 25(1), 116. https://doi.org/10.1037/h0063552
- Lazareva, O., McInnerney, J., Williams, T. (2018) Implicit relational learning in a multiple-object tracking task. Behavioural Processes, 152, 26-36. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.beproc.2018.04.014
- León, A., Andrade, D., Hernández, V., Hernández, L., Méndez, J., Rechy, F., & Domínguez, N. (2021). RbDT: A computerized task system based on transposition for the continuous analysis of relational behavior dynamics in humans. https://doi.org/10.31234/osf.io/2dwm3
- McLean, D., & Skowron, V. (2018). trajr: An R package for characterization of animal trajectories. Ethology. 124 (6), 440-448. doi:10.1111/eth.12739
- Okamoto, N., & Okuno, S. (1958). Transposition with multidimensional stimuli in young children. Japanese Psychological Research 5, 28-37. https://www.jstage.jst.go.jp/article/psycholres1954/1958/5/1958_5_28/ pdf Reese, H. (1968). The Perception of Stimulus Relations: Discrimination Learning and Transposition. Academic
- Press, Nueva York



The implications of potential-effective stimuli in James Gibson's ecological psychology: One hypothesis and issues

Hiroki Seki, Tokyo City University, JAPAN hseki@tcu.ac.jp

Question

What is the basis for James Gibson's claim of environmental richness?

His main argument-direct or action-based perception-can be derived without much emphasis on environmental richness.

This study summarizes the working hypotheses by organizing existing findings.

Conclusion

Gibson's claim of environmental richness seems to have been influenced by his view of stimuli through perceptual learning studies with Eleanor Gibson.

Three tasks need to be analyzed in future studies.

Details

1. The potential-effective diagram underlies Gibson's ecological approach

References to environmental richness

Gibson claims that the environment is rich and inexhaustible.

- "But note also that the environment as a whole with its unlimited possibilities existed prior to animals. (1979, p.128)"
- "The information in ambient light, along with sound, odor, touches, and natural chemicals, is **inexhaustible**. A perceiver can keep on noticing facts about the world she lives in to the end of her life without ever reaching a limit. (1979, p.242)"
- "The environment, so considered, would consist of a sort of reservoir of possible stimuli for both perception and action. Light, heat, sound, odor, gravity, and potential contacts with objects surround the individual...The variables and covariables and invariables of this stimulus environment are inexhaustible. (1960, p.701)"
- "Woodworth must have had some idea of a reservoir of potential stimulation in the light and sound which fill the world around us, for it is a prerequisite of his argument that perception is fundamentally exploratory. (1958, p.43)"

The potential-effective diagram

Gibson's claims about environmental richness, such as those mentioned above, are often discussed using the potential-effective diagram.

"What I call ecological optics is concerned with the available information for perception and differs from physical optics, from geometrical optics, and also from physiological optics. (1979, p.47)"

"In short, whether or not a potential stimulus becomes effective depends on the individual. (1960, p.701)"

The potential-effective diagram as the basis of Gibson's ecological approach

Gibson's potential-effective diagram leads to the concepts of ambient optic array and perceptual/visual system.

"The active system of visual perception was a necessary consequence of Gibson's understanding of the potential effectiveness of the optic array. (Lombardo, 1987, p.263)"

Gibson's claims on environmental richness are, therefore, considered the key concepts underlying his ecological approach. How did Gibson develop the idea of environmental richness? What is the basis of this claim?

2. Perceptual learning studies as the basis of the potential-effective diagram

Studies on perceptual learning (in collaboration with Eleanor Gibson (1955) and the wine differentiation study (unpublished)) are important to understand Gibson's emphasis on environmental richness, along with works on Ganzfeldt, comparative anatomy by Walls, and theoretical works.

"I shall instead review a series of experiments undertaken by the Gibsons that gave this theory of **perceptual learning** life, and also raised serious questions about the nature of perceptual activity, which were eventually to undermine the entire psychophysical approach to perception.(Reed,

- 1988, p.186)"
- "Although he had begun to work on a new book about all the senses, tentatively entitled The World and the Senses...he had not clarified the difference between available and obtained stimulation. (Reed, 1988, p.195)"

"Even in the 1950s one area of concern where Gibson's thinking sounds ecological is perceptual learning.(Lombardo, 1987, p.240)"

3. Future tasks

How did Gibson's views of the environment change through perceptual learning study? Future studies should analize the following:

- 1) What were the characteristics of Eleanor Gibson's perceptual learning research. Particularly, how did Eleanor discuss the concept of "differentiation?"
- 2) What did James and Eleanor's joint study reveal?
- 3) How did James' view of the environment change after the joint study?

References

- Gibson, J.J. (1958). The registering of objective facts: An interpretation of Woodworth's theory of perceiving. In G. Seward & J. Seward (Ed.), Current psychological issues: Essays in honor of Robert S. Woodworth. New York: Holt. Gibson, J.J. (1960). The concept of the stimulus in psychology. American Psychologist, 1960, 16, 694-703. Gibson, J.J. (1979). The Ecological Approach to Visual Perception, Lawrence Erlbaum Associates. Lombardo, T.J. (1987). The reciprocity of perceiver and environment: the evolution of James J. Gibson's ecological psychology, Lawrence Erlbaum Associates.

(Humboldt-Universität zu Bel performance in a free operant response-restraint task (Universidad Iberoamerik Pablo Saavedra (Universidad Anáhuac)

1.- Background

Rodrigo Sosa

Response Inhibition refers to the capacity to suppress an otherwise prevailing behavioral activity (Sosa, 2022), either prior (response restraint) or following (response cancellation) its initiation.

Differential reinforcement of low rates (DRL) is a useful method to assess response restraint capacity that require agents to wait a specified amount of time and then perform a specific response to earn a reward (Wilson & Keller, 1953).

Inter-response times (IRTs) distributions from DRL protocols consist of fairly regular patterns that can be characterized mathematically through the use of model-fitting techniques (see Box 1).

However, model-fitting techniques demand a large number of IRTs in order to obtain performance indices from DRL tasks, impairing the possibility to examine behavioral fluctuations within short time frames. The latter entails being able to estimate those

Pedro Espinosa-Villafranca

Mario Buenrostro-Jáuregui



2.- Objectives

1. To explore the suitability of a novel classification method that extracts local performance indices from IRTs in a DRL task as a means of conveying information about behavioral traits and states 2. To explore the sensitivity of a novel slidingwindow technique in detecting behavioral tendencies along the duration of a session.

3.- Methods

Subjects and Instruments. We trained 36 rats in a DRL task using an automated computer-toconditioned-chamber interface for reward delivery and data collection.

<u>Procedure</u>. Training started with a 3 s waiting requirement, which was then increased to 7 s and finally set to the target waiting requirement of 15

All rats underwent 28 (60 min) daily sessions of training with the target 15 s DRL task (see Figure 1), until performance was stable (i.e., when the average of a cost-weighted reward obtention metric ceased to increase).

Then, all rats' performance was assessed for 4 (40 min) sessions in the target DRL task via a classification algorithm (see Figure 2) implemented with R.

We administered two cognitive-enhancing drugs (methylphenidate and modafinil) for 5 days and explored the temporal profile of their effects on behavior. This required conducting a sliding window analysis, depicted in Figure 3, within each sessions' (already classified) data-points using a window length of 8 min and slide length of 20 s, and then contrasting conditions (before, during, and after the drug) and groups by each window.



Figure 5. Examples of double dissociation between our behavioral



Class





odec annotations in the upper half of each panel denote whether significant effects of drug administration or withdrawal were found in sessionwide phase x aroup contrasts (using conventional statistical significance nomenclature and arrows to denote whether decreases or increases were observed). Annotations in the bottom half

4.- Results and Discussion

The validity of our local behavioral indices is supported by their (cross-sectional and longitudinal) correlation to the more well-established global indices (see Figure 4).

The reliability of the local behavioral indices is supported by their relative within-subject stability (which is quantified by the intraclass correlations; see Figure 4).

The statistical independence of local behavioral indices is backed up by cases of double dissociation (see Figure 5). This means that there are situations where there is a favorable value in one behavioral index and an unfavorable value in another, or the other way around. These occurrences further support the idea that the indices are independent of each other.

Our classification algorithm allowed to generate behavioral indices in relatively narrow time-frames for tracking short-lived drug effects (see Figure 6).

Our approach is a viable alternative to model-fitting techniques to obtain performance indices from DRL data.

To the best of our knowledge, this is the first study reporting the psychometric properties of performance indices from DRL data.

Our classification algorithm in combination with our sliding window technique can be useful in both theoretical and translational research; for example, for studying the dynamics of the behavioral organizat t-lived effects of pharm respectively.

It should be noted that, as any classification system, our algorithm is vulnerable to misclassification; this might be remediated by either increasing the sampling space or augmenting its capacities with a supervised learning overlay.

References

Creation D. M., Balci, F., Simen, P., & Church, R. M. (2015). Optimal resp Experimental Psychology: Animal Learning and Cognition, 47(1), 39. Sanabria, F., & Killean, P. R. (2008). Evidence for impulsivity in the Spont complementary response-withholding tasks. Behavioral and Brain Function Complementary response-withholding tasks. Behavioral and Brain Function.

Compensational of the second secon



Chosen stepping-stone configurations depend on task constraints



Maisha Tahsin Orthy¹, Tyler Duffrin¹, Amy M. Jeschke², Jeffrey B. Wagman¹, & Rob Withagen²

Architectural or playground features tend to be standardized...



...but people differ in both action capabilities and intentions

Jeschke et al. (2020) found that people with different action capabilities make different stepping-stone configurations...



...older adults created smaller gaps (but same level of challenge) as younger adults

We investigated whether people with different intentions make different stepping- stone configurations

EXPERIMENT 1

Participants created a stepping path with rubber mats to cross an outdoor space...

...as carefully as possible ...as comfortably as possible, and ...as quickly as possible.

METHOD

Participants could use up to 12 mats to make the path and could readjust the position of each mat after trying out the path

Among other variables, we measured:





Fewer mats used in Quickly than in Comfortably and Carefully and...



Longer (linear) distances between mats and greater Challenge for mat distances in Quickly than in Comfortably and Carefully





Participants created a stepping path with rubber mats to cross an indoor space...

> ...that would be **fun** to cross ...that would be easy to cross

Representative paths created:

fun

easy



As in Experiment 1, there were differences in # of mats used, linear distances, and Challenge, but also in...

...total path length, max path width, and mean change in angle between mats...



DISCUSSION

Animals perceive and act on affordances, but also create or modify affordances ...



...and they do so differently in the



context of different intentions

Performing any behavior requires choosing the initial conditions that guarantee the intended final condition

It requires creating the circumstances under which the goal is achieved

TOWARDS A THEORY OF ECOLOGICAL RESILIENCE

Susan Tilbury, MT-BC

UCONN | UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT



Understanding the thermodynamic processes that predict an organism's ability to survive and adapt to dynamic forces in terms of first principles

BACKGROUND & DEFINITIONS

RESILIENCE: In living systems, resilience is here defined as **the ability of a system to recover and endure in the face of disrupting forces via maintained relationships,** in such a way as to maintain global stability. Resilience is crucial to surviving and thriving in a dynamic world.²

HOMEODYNAMICS: The view that biological systems are fluidplastic-elastic systems operating away from equilibrium, and governed by dissipative, thermodynamic processes with varying time delays between inputs and outputs. In such systems complexity is measured by the ratio of bulk to sheer viscosity.^{4, 6}

NETWORK PHYSIOLOGY: The interdisciplinary study of complex spatiotemporal interdependence of vertically and horizontally integrated systems governing both function and state of the organism.¹

PROBLEM STATEMENT

»Theories of resilience from traditional psychology have been somewhat contentious and inconsistent, due to lack of unified theory and systems ontology³. In medicine and physiology, psychosocial factors are largely overlooked.

» Network physiology is based on the same thermodynamic principles as homeokinetic/homeodynamic theories previously embraced by ecological psychology may offer new insights into perception-action.¹

» A growing body of research suggests changes in the dynamics of oscillatory systems, can have profound effects not only on mental and physical health, but also perceptual abilities & motor control.

»Agency and intentional control require stability and flexibility.⁵

RESILIENCE IN DYNAMICAL SYSTEMS

Krakovska and colleagues² proposed multiple parameters from engineering and ecology research to be used in interdisciplinary research. We propose to apply these parameters in modeling and investigating the dynamics of human resilience.

PROPOSED PARAMETERS

D	is	taı	nce	to	
	:				

How far from criticality an attractor state



TOP: Conceptual diagram of vertically and horizontally integrated physiological networks From an ecological perspective.

BOTTOM: Underdeveloped networks lack stability, but rigidity and inflexibility tends to emerge when they become too robust, leading to increased vulnerability. A healthy amount of "flee & dwell" dynamics in metastable systems supports flexibility and autonomy. (Adapted from Balaqué et al., 2020)

RESEARCH QUESTIONS

1.) Does physiological network stability/flexibility predict psychosocial resilience?

2.) Intrapersonal: Are there characteristic bodily responses to perceptual, cognitive, environmental, or social demands that relate to adaptive performance and psychosocial resilience?
3.) Interpersonal: Is the body's response to both social and environmental rhythms related to stability of emotions, relationships, or group cohesion?

4.) Can we use insights from the resilience of dissipative systems to craft more effective interventions?

REFERENCES

1) Balagué, N., Hristovski, R., Almarcha, M., Garcia-Retortillo, S., & Ivanov, P. C. (2020). Network Physiology of Exercise: Vision and Perspectives. *Frontiers in Physiology*, 11. https://doi.org/10.3389/fphys.2020.611550

Biturcation	is perched	
Resistance	How open the system is to a transfer of energy or information	
Elasticity	How quickly the system returns to stability after perturbation	
Persistence	How long/how much perturbation the system can tolerate before failure	
Rate Induced Tipping	How much time variation the system tolerate before nonautonomous instabilities arise	

2) Krakovska, H., Kuhn, C., & Longo, I. P. (2021). Resilience of dynamical systems. I–4	4.
https://doi.org/10.48550/arXiv.2105.10592	

3) Olsson, L., Jerneck, A., Thoren, H., Persson, J., & O'Byrne, D. (2015). Why resilience is unappealing to social science: Theoretical and empirical investigations of the scientific use of resilience. *Science Advances*, *1*(4).

https://doi.org/10.1126/sciadv.1400217

4) Soodak, H., & Iberall, A. (1978). Homeokinetics: A Physical Science for Complex Systems. *Science*, *201*(4356), 579–582.

5) Turvey, M. T., & Carello, C. (2012). On Intelligence From First Principles: Guidelines for Inquiry Into the Hypothesis of Physical Intelligence (PI). *Ecological Psychology,* 24(1), 3–32. https://doi.org/10.1080/10407413.2012.645757

6) Yates, F. E. (1994). Order and complexity in dynamical systems: Homeodynamics as a generalized mechanics for biology. *Mathematical and Computer Modelling*, 19(6–8), 49–74. https://doi.org/10.1016/0895-7177(94)90189-9

CONTACT

Susan Tilbury: susabury@gmail.com







The nonlinearity of pupil diameter fluctuations in an insight task as criteria for detecting children who solve the problem from those who do not

Sebastián Vásquez-Pinto[1], Diego Morales-Bader[2], Ralf F. A. Cox[3], Felipe Muñoz-Rubke[4], & Ramón D. Castillo[1]

[1] Centro de Investigación en Ciencias Cognitivas, Universidad de Talca, Chile.

[2] Facultad de Ingeniería y Ciencias, Universidad Adolfo Ibáñez, Santiago, Chile

[3] Department of Developmental Psychology, Faculty of Behavioural and Social Sciences, Heymans Institute for Psychological Research, University of

Groningen, Groningen, Netherlands.

[4] Instituto de Psicología, Universidad Austral de Chile, Puerto Montt, Chile

Introduction

Insights are an intriguing phenomenon in problem-solving research that occur when people suddenly discover the only possible solution after unsuccessfully trying to solve a problem while expressing astonishment (Chu & MacGregor, 2011). The group of Dixon and collaborators sought to approach insight from a perspective linked to dynamic systems (Dixon et al., 2010). This approach offers an ecological view in which cognition is contextdependent and Insight would be a self-organizing behavior that emerges from the coupling of perceptual-motor processes during phase transitions (Kelso, 1995).

This conjecture emerged after they observed two features in the dynamics of behavior linked to self-organizing physical and biological systems: a peak in entropy and a sharp manifestation of 1/f noise, both just before discovering a new and effective solution to gear system task (Stephen & Dixon, 2009).

Importantly, one criticism to these results is that the Gear System task lacks the characteristics of a real insight problem. Specifically, a phase known as impasse. Because of this, the Gear System task is classified as a pseudo-insight task, limiting the applicability of Dixon's findings to real insight tasks.

We explored if entropy fluctuations and fractal scaling can differentiate children who solve an insight problem from those who do not. We used the 8-coins task, considered a real insight problem task (Öllinger et al., 2013) and analyzed the pupillary diameter fluctuations of participants; measure associated with insight (Salvi et al., 2020; Mathôt, 2018).

Method

67 children between 6 and 12 years old (M=9.39; SD=1.53) tried to solve 8-coin problem (Öllinger et al., 2013). Pupillary diameter fluctuations of children were registered, and Recurrence Quantification and Power Spectrum Density analyses were used to estimate Entropy, Determinism, Recurrence Ratio, and the β scaling exponent.







Figure 1: Panel A shows the participant using the Tobii Eye Tracker X2-60 eye tracking device when is solving the 8-coins task on the platform. Panel B depicts 4 configurations of the 8-coins task. (1) 2D-Grouped; (2) 3D-Grouped; (3) 2D-Ungrouped and (4) 3D-Ungrouped

Results

Two groups were formed depending on who solved the task. We calculated Entropy (ENT), Recurrence Ratio (RR), determinism (DET), and Beta Scaling Exponent (B), for each participant in the last 56 windows, each lasting around 10 seconds, with an 8-second overlap with the next window. A mixed ANCOVA was used to analyze the data, with the group solvers versus no-solvers being the between-subjects factor and the fifty-six windows being the within-subjects factor. The model included children's age as a covariate (Figure 2).

Regarding ENT (Panel A), the solver group had a lower average than the no-solver group (F(1,64)=10.271; p=.002; $\eta_p 2=.138$). There was also a significant group-windows interaction effect (F(55,3520)=2.960; p=.000; $\eta p = .044$), indicating that children who solved the problem had lower ENT than those who did not, specifically in 24 windows, from 47 to 39 and from 25 to 11. The analysis did not reveal any effect of children's age on ENT or windows or any significant windows-age interaction.

Regarding DET (Panel C), a significant group-windows interaction effect was detected F(55.3520)=1.959; p=.001; $n_2 = .030$). Solver group had lower DET than the not-solver group from window 22 to 18. Children's age was associated with DET (F(1,64)=5.27, p=.025). However, the analysis did not find any significant effects of groups, windows, or windowsage interaction.

We analyzed the mean average and the average standard deviation of pupil diameter (Panel D and F, respectively). For the mean average (Panel D), we found no interaction effect, and there were no significant differences among windows or between groups. The children's age, as a covariate, had no effect. The average standard deviation of pupil diameter, we found that the solver group had a higher average than the no-solver group (F(1,64)=26.104; p=.000; $\eta p = .290$). However, no interaction effects were observed, and there were no significant differences among windows. The children's age, as a covariate, had no effect. Significant Differences



Figure 2: Comparisons of the last 120 seconds of those who did and did not solve the task on different metrics. These metrics were computed in overlapping windows of 500 data points, moving 100 data points at each step. The vertical lines represent the standard error.

Discussion

The most important finding occurs between seconds 58 and 30, where an entropy peak was appreciable in the group that solved the problem. The pupil of this group that exhibited greater randomness, which was accompanied by less predictability in the measure. This finding is consistent with the hypotheses put forward by Dixon et al. (2010).

Contrary to expected, the Beta scaling exponent (β) of groups did not differ throughout the windows. In fact, β scaling exponent of both groups moved systematically in the Brownian noise spectrum, far from 1/f pink noise. It is possible that the 8-coin task induced a different type of variability in pupil diameter fluctuations, which may reflect the unique cognitive demands of this task.

Conventional statistics failed to detect significant differences between groups at specific windows. The advantages of Recurrence Quantification Analysis (RQA) in these cases are clear.

Evidence suggest that human beings (in this case, children) may experience the selforganization of a novel and effective response pattern during the resolution of insight tasks

References

Chu, Y., & MacGregor, J. N. (2011). Human Performance on Insight Problem Solving: A Review. The Journal of Problem Solving, 3(2), 119-150. https://doi.org/10.7771/1932-6246.1094

Dixon, J. A., Stephen, D. G., Boncoddo, R., & Anastas, J. (2010). The self-organization of cognitive structure. In Psychology of learning and motivation (Vol. 52, pp. 343-384). Academic Press.

In terms of RR (Panel E), the solver group had a lower average than the no-solver group $(F(1,64)=4.227; p=.044; \eta_p 2=.062)$. There were no differences among windows and no significant windows-groups or windows-age interaction effects. Children's age had no significant effect on RR.

We examined the β scaling exponent (*Panel B*) and found that there were no significant effects related to children's age, group, windows, windows-group interaction, or windowsage interaction. Furthermore, it is worth noting that the beta values observed in each window fell within a range of -1.7 to -2.0, close to the range associated with Brownian noise.

Kelso, S. (1995). Self-Organization of Behavior: The basic picture. In Dynamic Patterns: The Self-Organization of Brain and Behavior (pp. 29–68). <u>https://www.researchgate.net/publication/224982322</u> Mathôt, S. (2018). Pupillometry: Psychology, physiology, and function. Journal of Cognition, 1(1): 16.

Öllinger, M., Jones, G., Faber, A. H., y Knoblich, G. (2013). Cognitive mechanisms of insight: the role of heuristics and representational change in solving the eight-coin problem. Journal of Experimental Psychology: Learning, Memory, and Cognition, 39(3), 931-939.

Salvi, C., Simoncini, C., Grafman, J., & Beeman, M. (2020). Oculometric signature of switch into awareness? Pupil size predicts sudden insight whereas microsaccades predict problem-solving via analysis. NeuroImage, 217, 116933.

Stephen, D. G. y Dixon, J. A. (2009). The self-organization of insight: Entropy and power laws in problem solving. Journal of Problem Solving, 2, 72-101.

RDC thanks the Agencia Nacional de Investigación y Desarrollo (ANID) for its support through the FONDEQUIP EQM190153 and FOVI210047 grants; and Programa de Investigación Asociativa (PIA) en Ciencias Cognitivas de la Universidad de Talca. FM-R would like to thank ANID for its support through the FONDECYT INICIACION Grant # 11190742. DM-B would like to thank ANID for its support through the Doctorate Scholarship FONDECYT-ANID Grant # 21220612. SV-P would like to thank ANID for its support through the Doctorate Scholarship FONDECYT-ANID Grant # 21231638.

International Conference on Perception and Action ICPA2023 POSTER SESSION 02

Longitudinal observation of the arrangement of a nursery room

Hiroe Yamazaki¹⁾, Hikaru Nozawa²⁾, Chihiro Nishio³⁾ 1)Tokyo Gakugei University, 2)Doshisha University, 3)Konan University

ABSTRACT

According to Gibson (1979), environments have a nested structure and cannot be described within a permanent and hierarchically intermittent framework. The fact that the posture is functionally nested reflects this environmental structure. In this study, we report on the evolution of the layout of a nursery room over approximately one year, focusing on the description of the environment according to the aforementioned views. A nursery is a place occupied by children and their caregivers that contains various objects such as daily necessities, toys, furniture, clothes, and many other things. Some of these objects are moved back and forth throughout the day, from day to day, or from season to season, while others are rarely moved throughout the year. Moreover, some objects are not moved by children but by adults. These room layout modifications are influenced by the size and height relationships between the people carrying the objects and the objects being carried, as well as the tasks that result in the rearrangement.

We collected a year's worth of photo data documenting the layout of nursery rooms containing different objects and attempted to describe "place" in terms of the patterns of object movement. Based on these data, we discuss the 'perception of place' that animals may experience as they habituate to a particular part of their environment.

RESEARCH QUESTION

- What is the nature of the structure of the environment to which the posture relates?
- Related to Gibson's ideas on posture and movement and nested structure theory of posture (Reed, 1988).
 - The nested structure of ambient optical arrays is established by surfaces in the environment.
 - Posture is considered to be dynamically nested.
 - The layout of the surface has such characteristics that relate to the dynamic nature of the posture.
- Can we describe the dynamic nesting of environments in terms of ecological psychology?
- Can we describe a place by the way things move?

LITERATURE REVIEW

1. The layout of a nursery room was divided into three categories based on the height of infants: those that can easily be sat on or stepped over, those that can be seen beyond but require turning around when moving, and those that block the view, and the extent to which these changed over the year was examined (Yamazaki, 2021).

 \rightarrow The dynamic nature of the environment confronting the posture is not included in the study.

- 2. Focused on attempts to describe the dynamics of plant and animal ecology.
 - Animal behavior

Classification of movement patterns such as settlement, migration, and nomadism (Mueller & Fagan, 2008)

- Plant ecology Describing transition mechanisms such as dispersal, invasion, establishment, competition, and tolerance
- 3. Place (Gibson, 1978)
 - "What you can see from here and hereabouts"
- Not separated from adjacent places by clear boundaries
- How is knowledge of the habitat acquired by

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Over the course of nine months, objects were moved around the room in various ways by the children and their teachers. During the observation period, some objects disappeared or were put away and hidden. The way things are moved includes three types

- Becoming settled
- Unsettled
- Becoming settled but never settled



Dustpan. Going back and forth between the two locations. Replaced by a similar one during the course of observation.



Shells. Placed in one group, but moved in two groups along the way, then settled.



Post (toy). Moves quite far across the zone during the course of observation and cannot be seen in the 5th month.



Plant pots. They continue to move within a limited area consisting of adjacent zones.

- Places are not necessarily determined only by immovable objects.
- Many of the non-static layouts result from the actions of



Vase. Repeatedly moving within a certain narrow area, sometimes moving away from.



Masks (crafted). Large migratory movements over a very large area, becoming unobservable in the 6th month.



Hand cream and rope. Keeps moving in a small area and does not settle on one spot.

Fig.2 Variation of moves

- locomotion and by place learning?
- Place is a nested component of habitat

METHODS

- Location: Nursery school building and entrance area where a total of 43 children aged 2–5 years (Fig 1).
- Data: Photographs collected bi-weekly over a period of 9 months; approximately 250 photographs taken at one time.
- Analysis: Based on the collected photographs, the longitudinal movement of objects was examined.



 $({\it Fig.1 Reprinted from Yamazaki 2021})$

- animals with detached objects.
- Places are made up of things that are fixed, things that are non-stable, and things that are stable without being fixed.
- It is important for place perception to perceive the layout that constrains the movement of the non-stationary things.

REFERENCES

Gibson, J.J. (1978). The Concept of Place in Ecology. Unpublished manuscript, James J. Gibson papers, Division of Rare and Manuscript Collections, Cornell University Library.Gibson, J. J. (1979). The Ecological Approach to Visual Perception. Boston, MT: Houghton, Mifflin and Company.

Yamazaki, H. [Transition of a nursery room and its ecological considerations] (Hoikushitsu no hensen to sono seitaigakuteki kousatsu) In Akita, K. & Endo, T. (Eds.), Hattatsu hoiku jissen seisakugaku kenkyu no hurontorannar (pp. 219-239). Chuohoki Publishing.
Mueller, T. & Fagan, W. F. (2008). Search and navigation in dynamic environments – from individual behaviors to population distributions. *Oikos*, 117, 654-664.

Reed, E. S. (1988). "Applying the theory of action systems to the study of motor skills," in Complex Movement Behavior: The Motor–Action Controversy, eds O. G. Meijer and K. Roth (Amsterdam: Elsevier), 45–86.

FUNDING This study was supported by JSPS KAKENHI Grant Numbers:22H00988

Author Index

Aigoin	1
Aoki	.21
Apodaca	.22
Aragón	.36
Babu	34
Bailey	14
Bautista	.36
Bilal	2
Bley	3
Bongers2,	30
Bravo De Anda	4
Buenrostro-Jáuregui	40
Caljouw	.23
Carver	11
Castillo	43
Chang C.H6,	19
Chang P.W6,	19
Contreras-Gamboa	8
Cooper	9
Covarrubias4,	35
Cox	.43
Davis	11
De Paz10.	27
De Silva	.11
Duffrin12.	41
Escamilla	.38
Espinosa-Villafranca	40
Fasone	5
Fauviaux	.13
Fukuhara	.25
Garza	.14
Gomes14.	15
Gotardi7.	16
Grav	.17
Grunkemever	.18
Guzmán	.38
Hainal	.33
Heras-Escribano	.27
Hernández-Eslava8, 28.	38
Huang	.19
Inagami	21
Isenhower	22
Iwase	21
Jacobs	2
Jeschke	41
liménez	36
Jorgenson.	.24
Kijima	.25
Koshimizu	.25
Kuznetsov	.24
Lee	.26
León	38
Likens	.18
Lobo	27
López-Ortiz	.28
т Т	5

Lozano-Goupil	1,29
Marin1	, 13, 29
Marsh	32
Mehta	30
Miller-Dicks	16
Morales-Bader	43
Mostafaoui	13
Munoz-Rubke	43
Navarro	7
Nie	14
Nishio	44
Nozawa	44
Ochoa	31
Ott	32
Overstreet	33
Pagano	34, 37
Parisi	29
Paxton	17
Pinto	11
Raffard1	1, 13, 29
Raveendranath	34, 37
Rodríguez	35
Romero	
Rosopa	37
Ruiz	
Saavedra	40
Santibáñez	38
Santos	9
Savelsbergh	7
Schmidt	13
Seifert	16
Seki	39
Shimazaki	21
Silva	5, 11
Smith	30
Sosa	40
Srinivasan	
Stoffregen14	, 15, 26
Susuki	21
Tahsin	41
Terasaki	21

Tosi	7
Travieso	.10, 27, 30
Van Der Kamp	7
Vanderelst	24
Vásquez-Pinto	43
Venkatakrishnan	34
Venkatakrishnan	
Wagman	.12, 15, 41
Whithagen	23, 41
Yamamoto	25
Yamazaki	
Yokoyama	25
Zaal	